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Corporate Governance Report

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance is about promoting corporate fairness, transparency, accountability and integrity of the management. It also aims to 
align as nearly as possible the interests of individuals, corporations and society and thereby enhancing the stakeholders’ value. Best results 
are achieved when the companies begin to treat the Corporate Governance system not as a mere structure but as a way of corporate life. 
Good corporate governance practices have always been an integral part of your Company’s philosophy and is committed to achieving and 
maintaining the highest standard of corporate governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors provide strategic direction and thrust to the operations of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the 
stakeholders. 

Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors and is in conformity with 
clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The names and categories of the Board Directors, their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the 
financial year 2009-10 and at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM), as also the number of directorships and committee positions held by 
them in other public limited companies as on March 31, 2010 are as under :

Name Category Relationship 
with other 
directors

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at the last 
AGM held 
on July 31, 
2009

No. of 
directorships 
in other 
public limited 
companies*

Committee Position**

Member Chairman

Rashesh Shah 
[Chairman & 
Managing Director]

Executive None 4 Yes 5 1 -

Venkat Ramaswamy 
[Whole-time Director]

Executive None 4 Yes 5 - -

Kunnasagaran Chinniah Non Independent, 
Non Executive

None 3 No 2 - 1

Narendra Jhaveri Independent, Non 
Executive

None 4 Yes 11 5 3

P. N. Venkatachalam Independent, Non 
Executive

None 4 Yes 3 1 -

Navtej S. Nandra Independent, Non 
Executive 

None 4 Yes 1 - -

Berjis Desai 1 Independent, Non 
Executive 

None 1 - 8 5 3

Sanjay Santhanam 2 Non Independent, 
Non Executive

None 2 Yes - - -

Sunil Wadhwani 3 Independent, Non 
Executive

None 2 No 1 - -

Ramanan Raghavendran 3 Independent, Non 
Executive

None 3 No 4 - -

*  Excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign companies and Government Bodies. 

** Only Audit Committee and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committee have been considered for the Committee positions.
1  Appointed w.e.f. November 18, 2009
2  Resigned w.e.f. October 22, 2009
3  Resigned w.e.f. April 19, 2010

The Directors also participate in the Board meetings through tele-conferencing.

The Board met four times on the following dates during the financial year 2009-10:

May 22, 2009, July 31, 2009, October 23, 2009 and January 22, 2010

None of the Directors is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees (as per Clause 49(I)(C)(ii)) across 
all the companies in which he is a Director. All the Directors have made the requisite disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them 
in other companies.
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Board Procedure 

The annual calendar of Board Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The agenda is circulated in advance to the Board Members. 
The items in the Agenda are backed by comprehensive background information to enable the Board to take appropriate decisions.

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct (‘Code’) for Directors and Senior Management personnel one level below the Executive 
Directors including all Functional Heads, which is in compliance with the requirements of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Code has 
been posted on the Company’s website.

Further, all the Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code. A declaration to this effect signed 
by the Chairman and CEO forms part of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition as at March 31, 2010

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri  Chairman

Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam  Member

Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran  Member

Mr. Navtej S. Nandra *  Member

All the members of the Committee have financial management expertise. The constitution and terms of reference of the Committee are in 
compliance with the requirements of Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 and clause 49(II)(A) of the Listing Agreement.

Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran has resigned w.e.f. April 19, 2010 and consequently ceased to be a member of the Committee.

Brief Description of the Terms of Reference 

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement 
is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Reviewing with the management, the annual and the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval.

3. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant finding and follow up there on.

4. Review of the items listed in Clause 49(II)(D) and (E) of  the Listing Agreement.

Meetings held

During the financial year 2009-10, four meetings were held on May 21, 2009; July 30, 2009; October 22, 2009 and January 21, 2010.

Attendance :

Names of the Members No. of meetings attended

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 4

Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 4

Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran 3

Mr. Navtej S. Nandra * 2

The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, Chief Financial Officer and the Senior Vice-President (Finance & Accounts) are invited to attend the 
meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Mr. Narendra Jhaveri was present at the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on July 31, 2009.

* Appointed w.e.f. July 31, 2009.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises of 3 non–executive Directors as members viz: Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, Mr. Navtej S. 
Nandra (w.e.f. July 31, 2009) and Mr. Berjis Desai (w.e.f. May 21, 2010). 

Mr. Sanjay Santhanam and Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran ceased to be members of the Committee consequent to resignation from the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee

During the financial year 2009-10, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held on May 22, 2009. 



51Corporate Governance Report

EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

Attendance:

Names of the Members No. of meetings attended
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah 1
Mr. Sanjay Santhanam 1
Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran 1

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee include formulating policies on specific remuneration packages for all the Directors 
and designing and implementation of performance appraisal systems and discretionary performance bonus payments for them and such other 
functions as may be delegated to it by the Board of Directors.

Remuneration to Directors

Non- Executive Directors

The Company pays a sitting fee of Rs. 20,000/- to the independent directors for attending the meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. 
During the year commission was paid (for the year 2008-09) and ESOPs were also granted to the Non-Executive Directors. The sitting fees and 
commission paid together with the ESOP granted to the Directors are as follows: 

Name of the Director Sitting fees amount (Rs.) Commission (Rs.) No. of Options granted
Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 2,80,000 8,00,000 5,000
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 2,20,000 7,00,000 5,000
Mr. Sunil Wadhwani 40,000 1,50,000 5,000
Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran 1,80,000 2,25,000 5,000
Mr. Berjis Desai 20,000 - -
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra 1,20,000 - -
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah - 2,25,000* 5,000*
Mr. Sanjay Santhanam - 4,00,000* 5,000*

*lapsed/renounced

Executive Directors

The details of the remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year is as under:

Mr. Rashesh Shah, Chairman & CEO Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy, Whole-time Director
Basic Salary 5,572,000 5,667,000
Perquisites 609,064 192,400

Bonus (08-09) 13,000,000 9,000,000
Total 19,181,064 14,859,400
Service Contract 3 years from April 1, 2008 3 years from April 1, 2008
Notice period N.A. N.A.
Severance fee N.A. N.A.

The shareholding of the Directors as on March 31, 2010 is as under:

Director No. of shares % of the paid up capital
Mr. Rashesh Shah 13,947,673 18.58
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy 5,302,656 7.06
Mr. Sunil Wadhwani 264,000 0.35
Mr. Narendra Jhaveri 7,800 0.01
Mr. Ramanan Raghavendran 7,800 0.01
Mr. P. N. Venkatachalam 2,000 0.00
Mr. Navtej S. Nandra 792,418 1.06

SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Shareholders/Investors’ Grievance Committee presently comprises 3 members viz: , Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy 
and Mr. Berjis Desai. 

During the year Mr. Sanjay Santhanam resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company and consequent to that he also ceased to be a 
member of the Committee. The Committee was reconstituted on January 22, 2010 with the induction of Mr. Berjis Desai.
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Meetings held

During the financial year 2009-10, three meetings of the Shareholders/Investor Grievance Committee were held on May 21, 2009, July 30, 2009 
and January 21, 2010

Attendance :

Names of the Members No. of meetings attended
Mr. Sanjay Santhanam 1
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah 3
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy 3

Mr. B. Renganathan, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer.

Based on the report received from the Company’s Registrar, the Company had received 41 requests/complaints during the year and were 
satisfactorily resolved/replied to. There were no investors’ complaints pending as on March 31, 2010.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Financial Year Date Time Venue No. of special 
resolutions passed

2008-2009 July 31, 2009 2.30 p.m. Y. B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, 
General Jaganath Bhosale Marg, 
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

-

2007-2008 July 11, 2008 2.30 p.m. Y. B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, 
General Jaganath Bhosale Marg, 
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

3

2006-2007 September 12, 2007 10:30 a.m. 14th Floor, Express Towers, 
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

11

Resolution to be passed through Postal Ballot will be taken up as and when necessary.

Disclosures

i. The Company did not have any material significant related party transaction having a potential conflict with the interest of the Company 
at large. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in the Notes to the accounts forming part of the Annual Report.

ii. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards and policies generally accepted in India.

iii. There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matter related to the capital markets, resulting in disciplinary action 
against the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority, during the last three years.

iv. The Company has implemented the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as set out in the Listing Agreement. In respect 
of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements, the Company has constituted a Remuneration Committee, the details whereof are 
given under the heading “Remuneration Committee”.  The Company has framed a whistle blower policy.

v. The Company has a Risk Management Policy Framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks 
associated with the business of the Company.

vi. CEO/CFO Certification

 As required by Clause 49(V) of the Listing Agreement, the CEO and CFO have given certificate to the Board. 

vii. Compliance Certificate 

 As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a certificate from a Practising Company Secretary, certifying the compliance by the 
Company with the provisions of Corporate Governance of the Listing Agreement is given as an Annexure to this Report.

Means of Communication

i. The quarterly/annual financial results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the Listing Agreement and 
published in one English daily, and one Marathi daily. The quarterly/annual results and the presentations made to institutional investors/
analysts are also uploaded on the website of the Company www.edelcap.com.
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ii. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in compliance with the requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, is annexed 
to the Directors’ Report which forms part of this Annual Report being sent to all the members of the Company.

iii. The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries form part of this Annual Report.

General Shareholder Information

i. AGM: Date, time and venue : July 30, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. at Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, New Marine Lines, Mumbai – 400020.
ii. Financial Year : April 1, 2009 to March 31, 2010
iii. Date of Book Closure : July 1, 2010 to July 5, 2010
iv. Dividend payment date : On or after July 30, 2010

v.  Listing of equity shares on Stock Exchanges:

 The equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE). The 
Company has paid listing fees, as applicable to the respective Stock Exchanges for the financial years 2008-09, 2009-10 and 2010-11

vi. Stock Codes:

Trading Symbol
 Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
 National Stock Exchange of India Limited

532922
EDELWEISS

ISIN with NSDL and CDSL
 Equity shares INE532F01047

vii. Market Price Data: High/Low of daily closing market price of the Company’s shares traded at NSE and BSE during each month in the 
financial year ended March 31, 2010 are as under:

 Share Price & Volume

Month BSE NSE
High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Trade Quantity High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Trade Quantity

Apr-09 318.95 259.50 544,580 318.00 260.90 1,300,584
May-09 458.25 293.05 1,937,624 458.05 293.35 3,850,188
Jun-09 506.10 389.40 983,727 507.75 387.10 2,839,597
Jul-09 435.90 341.95 403,543 438.20 344.05 1,345,062
Aug-09 440.10 413.50 232,740 441.55 416.30 595,088
Sep-09 480.10 425.10 281,649 482.75 427.60 578,684
Oct-09 534.75 465.65 787,526 531.45 461.80 774,760
Nov-09 507.55 447.00 5,917,856 506.80 449.85 2,108,721
Dec-09 504.60 455.05 554,362 502.20 455.00 841,673
Jan-10 503.05 436.35 908,770 505.65 439.40 1,142,414
Feb-10 444.30 404.60 117,567 444.35 405.25 1,228,723
Mar-10 446.10 421.95 191,415 445.25 420.75 502,925
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viii. Performance of share price in comparison with the broad - based indices, viz., NSE Nifty & BSE Sensex: 

 

ix.  Registrar and Transfer Agent: Link Intime India Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent acknowledge and executes transfers of shares and arranges for issue of dividend warrants. The Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent also accepts, deals with and resolves complaints of shareholders.

x.  Share Transfer System: The Company’s shares are traded on the Stock Exchanges in compulsory demat mode. Physical shares, which 
are lodged for transfer with the Share Transfer Agent, are processed and returned to the shareholders within a period of 30 days.

xi.  Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2010:

No. of Equity Shares No. of Shareholders % of Share holder Total no. of shares held % of Shares held

 1 - 500 151,807 99.65 2,042,208 2.72

 501 - 1000 233 0.15 170,650 0.23

 1001 - 2000 90 0.06 129,032 0.17

 2001 - 3000 26 0.02 65,855 0.09

 3001 - 4000 20 0.01 72,810 0.10

 4001 - 5000 13 0.01 60,114 0.08

 5001  - 10000 29 0.02 214,345 0.28

 10001 and above 126 0.08 72,316,879 96.33

Total 152,344 100.00 75,071,893 100.00
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 Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2010 

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of Shares % of Holding

1. Promoters & Persons acting in Concert 28,571,569 38.06 
2. Mutual funds/FIs/Banks/Insurance Companies 2,640,354 3.52 
3. FIIs 10,516,517 14.01 
4. NRIs/Foreign Nationals/Foreign Bodies Corporate 17,349,724 23.11 
5. Public and Others 15,993,729 21.30 

Total 75,071,893 100.00

xii. Dematerialisation of shares: As on March 31, 2010, 90.33% of the Company’s total shares, i.e. 67,811,271 shares were held in 
dematerialised form and 9.67% comprising 7,260,622 shares were held in physical form. A Practicing Company Secretary conducts the 
secretarial audit, at the end of each quarter of the financial year, to reconcile the total issued capital, listed capital and capital held by 
depositories in dematerialised form. 

xiii. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

 The Company has not issued GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other instrument convertible into equity.

xiv. Details of shares lying in the suspense account (pursuant to Clause 5A of the Listing Agreement):

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Details
No. of 

shareholders
No. of 
shares

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the beginning of the year

128 1025

2 Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from the 
suspense account during the year

9 72

3 Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account during 
the year 

9 72

4 Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account 
lying at the end of the year 

119 953

 The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

xv. Plant locations – Not Applicable

xvi. Address for correspondence : For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of shares and debentures, 
dematerialisation of shares, change of address, non receipt of annual report, interest/dividend warrant and any other query relating to the 
shares and debentures of the Company, the investors may please write to the following address: 

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound
LBS Marg, Bhandup (W),
Mumbai 400 078, India
Tel: +91 22 2596 3838
Fax: +91 22 2594 6979
e-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime.co.in

The Company Secretary
Edelweiss Capital Limited
14th Floor, Express Towers
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400 021, India 
Tel: +91 22 2286 4400
Fax: +91 22 4086 3618
E-mail: investors@edelcap.com

xvii. For queries relating to the financial statements and investor information, other than those relating to shares/dividend, please write to:

Shailendra Maru,
Vice President – Investor Relations
Edelweiss Capital Limited,
14th Floor, Express Towers,
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021, India
Phone: +91-22-4019 4873
E-mail: ir@edelcap.com
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Declaration by the CEO under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement regarding adherence to the Edelweiss Code of Conduct

In accordance with Clause 49 (I) (D) of the Listing Agreement, I hereby declare that all the Directors and Senior Management personnel of the 
Company have affirmed compliance with the Edelweiss Code of Conduct applicable to all the Directors and Senior Management, for the year 
ended March 31, 2010.

For Edelweiss Capital Limited
Mumbai  Rashesh Shah
Date: May 21, 2010 Chairman & CEO

Certificate on compliance of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 

To the members of Edelweiss Capital Limited,

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Edelweiss Capital Limited ("the Company"), for the year ended  
March 31, 2010, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the procedures 
and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither 
an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with 
the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For P. K. Pandya & Co.
Practising Company Secretary

Prakash K. Pandya
Mumbai Proprietor
Date: May 21, 2010 Membership No. FCS 3901
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Edelweiss Capital Limited

Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010

together with Auditors’ Report



58 Consolidated Financial Statements

This page has been intentionally left blank



EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

59Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

To the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Capital Limited

1. We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of Edelweiss Capital Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries and 
associates (collectively referred to as ‘the Group’) as at 31 March 2010 and the consolidated profit and loss account and the consolidated 
cash flow statement for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management and have been prepared by the management on the basis of separate financial statements and other financial information 
regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall 
consolidated financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of certain subsidiaries and associates whose financial statements 
reflect total assets of Rs. 6,562 million as at 31 March 2010, total revenues of Rs. 2,275 million and net cash inflows of Rs. 951 million for 
the year then ended. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have 
been furnished to us, and in our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely 
on the report of the other auditors.

4. We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Group in accordance with the requirements of Accounting 
Standard (‘AS’) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements and Accounting Standard (‘AS’) 23, Accounting for Investments in Associates in 
Consolidated Financial Statements as prescribed under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. 

5. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information 
of the components, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the 
attached consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India:

 (i) In the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2010;

 (ii) In the case of the consolidated profit and loss account, of the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010; and

 (iii) In case of the consolidated cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date.

For B S R & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Akeel Master
Mumbai Partner
21 May 2010 Membership No.: 046768
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2010

As per our report attached.
For B S R & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

B Renganathan

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director

V. P. & Company Secretary

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai | 21 May 2010

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) Schedule 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' funds

Share capital 2  375.36  374.67 
Stock options outstanding account  18.91  12.79 
Share application money  0.04 – 
Reserves and surplus 3  22,179.38  20,766.23 

 22,573.69  21,153.69 
Loan funds

Secured loans 4  7,259.54  2,439.33 
Unsecured loans 5  19,878.65  5,184.42 

 27,138.19  7,623.75 

Minority interest 6  2,132.02  2,148.87 

TOTAL  51,843.90  30,926.31 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed assets 7
Gross block  737.25  657.07 
Less: Accumulated depreciation  382.96  278.16 
Net block  354.29  378.91 
Capital work-in-progress  234.51  148.55 

 588.80  527.46 

Investments 8  1,560.25  1,072.56 

Deferred tax asset (net) 25.4  602.83  542.32 

Current assets, loans and advances
Stock-in-trade 9  11,505.83  4,641.76 
Sundry debtors 10  848.31  435.24 
Cash and bank balances 11  16,998.88  16,945.41 
Other current assets 12  483.36  710.00 
Receivable from financing business 13  18,372.71  6,295.10 
Loans and advances 14  7,996.67  4,932.19 

 56,205.76  33,959.70 

Less: Current liabilities and provisions
Current liabilities 15  5,718.38  4,161.72 
Provisions 16  1,395.36  1,014.01 

 7,113.74  5,175.73 

Net current assets  49,092.02  28,783.97 

TOTAL  51,843.90  30,926.31 

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 25
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet.
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2010

As per our report attached.
For B S R & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

B Renganathan

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director

V. P. & Company Secretary

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai | 21 May 2010

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) Schedule 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
INCOME

Fee and commission income 17  3,504.04  2,441.21 
Income from treasury operations 18  2,454.61  2,511.66 
Income from investments and dividend 19  342.56  697.39 
Interest income 20  3,389.10  3,314.64 
Other income 21  87.68  40.06 

 9,777.99  9,004.96 

EXPENDITURE
Employee costs 22  1,621.68  1,659.35 
Operating and other expenses 23  2,763.02  2,529.32 
Financial expenses 24  1,942.78  1,349.29 
Depreciation  122.47  176.61 

 6,449.95  5,714.57 

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST  3,328.04  3,290.39 
Provision for taxation 
- Income tax  949.27  1,557.20 
(includes short provision for earlier years of Rs. 2.37 million;
Previous year: Rs. 195.76 million)
- Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement  (6.70)  – 
- Deferred tax benefit  (63.35)  (374.52)
- Fringe benefit tax  –  16.44 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION AND BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST  2,448.82  2,091.27 
Share of minority interest in profit for the year  157.22  226.83 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER MINORITY INTEREST  2,291.60  1,864.44 
Profit and loss account balance brought forward  5,284.41  3,955.62 
PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION  7,576.01  5,820.06 

APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Statutory Reserve under section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934

 213.76  195.04 

Transfer to Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987  0.14  – 
Proposed dividend  600.73  224.80 
Dividend on preference shares  –  0.25 
Interim dividend  150.09  – 
Dividend distribution tax  125.37  38.25 
Transfer to general reserve  73.73  74.71 
Transfer to capital redemption reserve  5.00  2.60 
Profit and loss account balance carried forward  6,407.19  5,284.41 

 7,576.01  5,820.06 

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (Face value Rs. 5 each) 25.3  30.56  24.88 
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (Face value Rs. 5 each) 25.3  29.37  24.28 

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 25
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit and loss account.
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 31 March 2010 31 March 2009

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit before taxation  3,328.04  3,290.39 

Adjustments for 
Depreciation/amortisation  122.47  176.61 
Stock options outstanding  6.12  6.80 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  (6.92)  49.83 
Provision on non-performing assets  8.43  14.10 
General loan loss provision  34.96  12.69 
(Profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  (13.70)  0.24 
Goodwill on consolidation written off  0.76  – 
Profit on sale of investments (net)  (225.52)  (315.29)
Provision for diminution in value of long term investments  18.30  18.30 
Diminution in the value of long term investments written back  –  (1.25)
Dividend on current investments  (59.38)  (152.81)
Dividend on long term investments  (0.45)  (48.17)
Interest Income  (1,438.21)  (1,682.92)
Interest expense  1,942.78  1,336.95 
Operating cash flow before working capital changes  3,717.68  2,705.47 

Adjustments for 
(Increase)/decrease in sundry debtors  (406.15)  1,295.71 
(Increase)/decrease in stock in trade  (6,864.07)  5,037.08 
Increase in loans and advances  (2,708.02)  (2,471.90)
(Increase)/decrease in receivables from financing business  (12,086.02)  2,839.42 
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities and provisions  931.45  (7,587.90)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations  (17,415.13)  1,817.88 

Income taxes paid  1,302.40  1,227.85 

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities - A  (18,717.53)  590.03 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets  (184.69)  (277.18)
Sale of fixed assets  14.59  6.98 
(Purchase)/sale of investments (net) (Refer Note 2)  (277.75)  5,552.67 
Dividend on investments  83.63  202.76 
Interest received  1,644.39  1,366.99 
Net cash generated from investing activities - B  1,280.17  6,852.22 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2010
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 31 March 2010 31 March 2009

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from issue of share capital including premium  8.04  24.23 
Share application money received  0.04 –
Receipts from settlor/sponsors towards fund  –  0.01 
Change in Minority interest  (138.88)  (538.71)
Proceeds from secured loans (net) (Refer Note 2)  4,820.21  1,134.59 
Dividend and Dividend distribution tax paid  (412.66)  (201.99)
Proceeds from/(Repayment of) unsecured loans (net) (Refer Note 2)  14,694.23  (9,205.90)
Interest paid on loans  (1,434.71)  (1,296.98)
 
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities - C  17,536.27  (10,084.75)

Change in foreign exchange translation reserve - D  (45.44)  146.48 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D)  53.47  (2,496.02)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  16,945.41  19,441.43 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note 1)  16,998.88  16,945.41 

Notes: 1 Cash and cash equivalents represent cash, balances with banks in current account and fixed deposits placed with banks 
(Refer schedule 11 to the financial statements). 

 2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions. 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)

As per our report attached.
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

 The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual 
basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to 
time. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees in millions.

1.2 Principles of consolidation

 a) The consolidated financial statements relate to Edelweiss Capital Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries and associates 
(together ‘the Group’). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

   • In respect of subsidiary enterprises, the financial statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together 
the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after as far as possible eliminating intra-group balances 
and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits or losses in accordance with Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated 
Financial Statements prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

   • In case of Associate Enterprises, the financial statements have been consolidated as per Accounting Standard 23 – Accounting 
for Investment in Associates prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

   • Investments in subsidiaries where control is intended to be temporary or where the objective of control over the subsidiary is 
not to obtain economic benefits therefrom, have not been consolidated.

   • Assets and liabilities of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing as at the 
balance sheet date. Revenue and expense are translated into Indian Rupees at the average exchange rate prevailing during 
the year and the resulting net translation adjustment has been disclosed as foreign exchange translation reserve in Reserves 
and Surplus.

   • The excess of cost over the Company’s investments in the subsidiary company is recognised in the consolidated financial 
statements as Goodwill. The excess of Company’s share in equity and reserves of the subsidiary company over the cost of 
acquisition is treated as Capital Reserve.

   • The share of minority interest in the net profit of subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of the 
Group to arrive at the net income attributable to the Group.

   • The share of minority interest in net assets of subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated financial statements 
separate from liabilities and the equity of the Group. 

   • The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in 
similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

 b) Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard 13 - Accounting for 
Investments prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.2 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

 c) The subsidiaries and associates considered in the consolidated financial statements :

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Entity Country of 
Incorporation

Proportion of 
ownership interest as 

at 31 March 2010

1 Edelweiss Securities Limited India 100.00%

2 Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited India 100.00%

3 Edelweiss Commodities Limited India 100.00%

4 ECL Finance Limited India 84.44%

5 Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited India 100.00%

6 EC Global Limited 1 Mauritius 100.00%

7 Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited India 71.91%

8 Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited India 100.00%

9 Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 1 India 100.00%

10 Edelcap Securities Limited India 100.00%

11 Edelweiss Asset Management Limited India 100.00%

12 ECap Equities Limited India 100.00%

13 Edelweiss Broking Limited India 100.00%

14 Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited India 100.00%

15 Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited India 100.00%

16 Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited India 100.00%

17 Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited India 100.00%

18 EC Commodity Limited India 100.00%

19 Edel Commodities Limited India 100.00%

20 Edel Land Limited India 100.00%

21 Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited India 100.00%

22 EC International Limited Mauritius 100.00%

23 Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore 100.00%

24 Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Limited 2 Singapore 100.00%

25 Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited 2 Singapore 100.00%

26 Aster Commodities DMCC 3 Dubai 100.00%

27 ECap International Limited 3 Mauritius 100.00%

28 EAAA LLC 4 Mauritius 100.00%

29 Allium Finance Private Limited 5 India 100.00%

30 Arum Investments Private Limited 6 India 100.00%

31 EW Special Opportunities Advisors LLC 7 Mauritius 100.00%

32 EW India Special Assets Advisors LLC 7 Mauritius 100.00%

33 Edel Investments Limited India 100.00%

34 Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited India 74.00%

35 Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 8 India 49.00%

36 Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited India 40.00%

37 Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited6 India 50.00%

38 Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited6 India 50.00%

  1 held through Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited
  2 held through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited
  3 held through EC International Limited
  4 held through ECap International Limited
  5 held through Edelweiss Commodities Limited
  6 held through Edelweiss Securities Limited
  7 held through EAAA LLC
  8 held through Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.2 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

 d) During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company has raised its interest in ECL Finance Limited from 79.29% to 84.44%.

 e) Edelgive Foundation, a 100% subsidiary and a company registered under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956, with the sole 
objective of philanthropy, where no economic benefit shall be derived by the Group, has not been consolidated.

 f) Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC, a 100% subsidiary is wound-up, awaiting regulatory clearances for formal closure and therefore has 
not been consolidated.

 g) Edelweiss Securities (Singapore) Pte. Limited, a 100% subsidiary is wound-up, awaiting regulatory clearances for formal closure 
and therefore has not been consolidated.

 h) Blue River Capital Management Company I, LLC, and Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited, both associates, have 
not been consolidated as the Group is under negotiation for exiting from these investments and the same are carried at intended 
realisable value.

1.3 Use of estimates

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

1.4 Revenue recognition

 a) Fee income is accounted for on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Group and 
the counterparty.

 b) Brokerage income on securities and commodities broking business is recognised as per contracted rates at the execution of 
transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and is inclusive of service tax. Brokerage income on insurance broking 
business is recognised on accrual basis at the inception of the insurance policy, once the policy is issued by the insurance 
company based on the terms agreed with the insurance companies and is exclusive of service tax.

 c) Portfolio management fees are accounted on accrual basis as follows:

   • In case of percentage based fees, as a percentage of the unaudited Net Asset Value at the end of each financial quarter, on a 
quarterly basis.

   • In case of return based fee, as a percentage of the annual profit, on an annual basis.

 d) Investment management fees are recognised net of service tax on an accrual basis in accordance with the Investment Management 
Agreement with Edelweiss Mutual Fund (‘the mutual fund’) and complies with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual 
Funds) Regulations based on average Assets Under Management (‘AUM’) confirmed by the mutual fund.

 e) Revenue from rendering of trustee services is recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Compensation 
Agreement between trustee company and the fund. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of service tax.

 f) Income from marketing and distribution services is recognised on accrual basis.

 g) Research services fee income is accounted for on an accrual basis.

 h) Income from treasury operations comprises of profit/loss on sale of securities and commodities and profit/loss on equity, commodity, 
interest rate and currency derivative instruments. 

   i) Profit/loss on sale of securities and commodities is determined based on the weighted average cost of the securities/
commodities sold. 

   ii) Profit/loss on closed positions of derivative instruments is recognised on final settlement or squaring up of the contracts. For 
profit/loss on derivative instruments where the Group has open positions at the year end refer section 1.5 below.

 i) Interest income is recognised on accrual basis except in case of non-performing assets, which is recognised on receipt basis, as 
per The Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) guidelines. In case of commercial papers, deep discount bonds and certificate of deposits, 
the difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value are apportioned on time basis and recognised as interest 
income.
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 j) Profit/loss earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss on sale of investments is determined based 
on the weighted average cost of the investments sold.

 k) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

 l) ECL Finance Limited, subsidiary of the Company, enters into securitisation transactions and assets are derecognised upon sale 
only if ECL Finance Limited surrenders control over the contractual rights that comprise in the financial assets. 

  Gain on securitization of assets is recognised on the difference between the book value of the securitised asset and consideration 
received on the assets derecognised from the books. The same is amortised over the life of the securities issued by the Special 
Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’) in accordance with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. Losses, if any, are recognised 
immediately.

 m) Profit/loss on error trades are included in “Income from treasury operations”.

1.5 Derivatives 

1.5.1 Equity Index / Stock – Futures

 a) Equity Index/Stock Futures are marked-to-market on a daily basis. Debit or credit balance disclosed under Loans and advances 
or current liabilities, respectively, in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, represents the net amount 
paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of Index/Stock Futures till the balance sheet date.

 b) As on the balance sheet date, the profit/loss on open positions in Index/Stock Futures are accounted for as follows:

   • Credit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated profit, is ignored and 
no credit is taken in the profit and loss account.

   • Debit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated loss, is recognised in 
the profit and loss account.

 c) On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for Equity Index/Stock Futures, the profit or loss is calculated as difference between 
settlement/squaring-up price and contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the settled/squared-up contract 
in “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account” is recognised in the profit and loss account upon expiry of the 
contracts. When more than one contract in respect of the relevant series of Equity Index/Stock Futures contract to which the 
squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of the squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so 
squared-up is determined using weighted average method for calculating profit/loss on squaring-up. 

 d) “Initial Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, representing initial margin paid, and “Margin Deposits”, representing 
additional margin over and above initial margin, for entering into contracts for Equity Index/Stock Futures, which are released on 
final settlement/squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed under Loans and advances.

1.5.2 Equity Index / Stock – Options

 a) “Equity Index/Stock option premium account” represents premium paid or received for buying or selling the options, respectively.

 b) As at the balance sheet date, in the case of long positions, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for those 
options exceeds the premium prevailing on the balance sheet date, and in the case of short positions, for the amount by which 
premium prevailing on the balance sheet date exceeds the premium received for those options, and reflected in “Provision for Loss 
on Equity Index/Stock Option Account”.

 c) When the option contracts are squared-up before expiry of the options, the premium prevailing on that date is recognised in profit 
and loss account. If more than one option contract in respect of the same index/stock with the same strike price and expiry date 
to which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of squaring-up of the contract, weighted average method 
is followed for determining profit or loss. On expiry of the contracts and on exercising the options, the difference between final 
settlement price and the strike price is transferred to the profit and loss account. In both the above cases, premium paid or 
received for buying or selling the option, as the case may be, is recognised in the profit and loss account for all squared-up/settled 
contracts. 

 d) “Equity Index/Stock options margin account”, representing initial margin paid and “Margin Deposit”, representing additional margin 
paid over and above initial margin, for entering into contracts for Equity Index/Stock options, which are released on final settlement/
squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed under Loans and advances.

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.4 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 a) Commodities futures are marked-to-market on a daily basis. Debit or credit balance disclosed under Loans and advances or 
Current liabilities respectively, in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Commodities Stock Futures Account”, represents the net amount 
paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of commodities futures till the balance sheet date. 

 b) As on the balance sheet date, profit/ loss on open positions in commodities futures are accounted for as follows:

   • Credit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Commodities Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated profit, is ignored and 
no credit for the same is taken in the profit and loss account.

   • Debit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Commodities Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated loss, is adjusted in the 
profit and loss account.

 c) On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for commodities futures, the profit or loss is calculated as the difference between 
settlement/ squaring-up price and contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the settled/ squared-up contract 
in “Mark-to-Market Margin – Commodities Stock Futures Account” is recognised in the profit and loss Account. When more than one 
contract in respect of the relevant series of commodity futures contract to which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at 
the time of the squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so squared-up is determined using weighted average 
method for calculating profit / loss on squaring-up.

 d) “Initial Margin – Commodities Stock Futures Account”, representing initial margin paid, and “Margin Deposits – Commodities Stock 
Futures Account”, representing additional margin over and above initial margin, for entering into contracts for commodities futures, 
which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed under Loans and advances.

1.5.4 Commodity forwards / Currency Futures

 Outstanding commodity forward/ currency futures are measured at fair value as at the balance sheet date. Fair value is determined 
using quoted market prices in an actively traded market, for the instrument, wherever available, as the best evidence of fair value. In the 
absence of quoted market prices in an actively traded market, a valuation technique is used to determine the fair value. In most cases 
the valuation techniques use observable market data as input parameters in order to ensure reliability of the fair value measure.

 The mark to market on derivative contracts is determined on a portfolio basis with net unrealised gains / losses being recognised in the 
profit and loss account.

1.5.5 Benchmark linked debentures

 The Group has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices over 
the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at year end. The 
unrealised loss on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the profit and loss account and unrealised gain, if 
any is ignored. The resultant debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

1.5.6 Interest rate swaps

 Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (the NBFC) enters into interest rate swaps with the objective of managing the interest rate risk 
on its assets and liabilities. The outstanding swap trades at the reporting date if any, are disclosed at the notional value. These swaps 
are accounted on an accrual basis; these transactions are not marked to market.

1.6 Fixed assets and depreciation

 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises of purchase price and any attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

 Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready to use or put to use whichever is earlier. In 
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal. 

 Depreciation is charged at the rates prescribed in the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 as given below:

Class of asset Rate of depreciation
Flat 5.00%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Office equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Vehicles 25.89%
Vessel 20.00%

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.5 Derivatives (Continued)

1.5.3 Commodities Stock – Futures 
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 Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the period of lease 
whichever is shorter. 

 All fixed assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. 

 Software expenses are written off in the year of purchase on a prudent basis except where direct future economic benefit attributable to 
the asset is expected to flow to the enterprise. Software capitalised is amortised on straight line basis over the useful life of the software 
upto a maximum of 3 years commencing from the date on which the software was first utilised.

1.7 Impairment of assets 

 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal/
external factors. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount 
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the profit 
and loss account. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable 
historical cost.

1.8 Stock-in-trade

 a) The securities acquired with the intention of short-term holding and trading positions are considered as stock-in-trade and disclosed 
as current assets.

 b) The securities including those arising from error trades held as stock-in-trade under current assets are valued at lower of weighted 
average cost or market value. In case of units of mutual funds, net asset value is considered as market value. 

 c) Inventories in the form of commodities are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

 d) Debt instruments are valued at cost or fair value whichever is lower. Fair value is taken as last traded price for the listed instruments 
and for other as declared by Fixed Income Money Market and Derivative Association of India (‘FIMMDA’) jointly with Primary 
Dealers Association of India (‘PDAI’). In case of debt instruments for which direct quotes are not available, they are valued at the 
lowest of the quotes as on valuation date as provided by market intermediaries.

 e) Commercial papers, certificate of deposits and treasury bills are valued at carrying cost.

 f) Inventories in the form of land is valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower.

1.9 Investments

 Investments are classified into long term investments and current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for one year 
or more are classified as long term investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are classified as 
current investments. 

 Long term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined separately for each 
investment. 

 Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each 
investment. In case of investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is considered as the fair 
value.

1.10 Foreign currency transactions

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences, if 
any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account of the year. 

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange 
rates on that date. The exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the profit and loss account and related assets and liabilities are 
accordingly restated in the balance sheet. 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.6 Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued) 
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 Provident fund

 The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on 
an accrual basis and recognised in the profit and loss account.

 Gratuity

 The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. This 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

 The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent 
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee 
benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

 The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present 
value are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

 Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 

1.12 Taxation

 Income tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the tax laws applicable), 
deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the 
period) and fringe benefit tax. 

 Current tax

 Provision for current tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after adjusting for allowances, disallowances and 
exemptions in accordance with the tax laws applicable.

 Deferred taxation

 The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognised using the tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is 
reasonable certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss 
under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as 
the case may be) to be realised.

 Minimum alternate tax (MAT)

 MAT credit asset is recognised where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be realised in future.

 Fringe benefit tax

 For the previous year, provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (‘FBT’) is made on the basis of applicable FBT on the taxable value of chargeable 
expenditure of the Company as prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

1.13 Operating leases

 Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

1.14 Earnings per share

 The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed 
by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax 
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were 
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.11 Employee benefits
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 The Group follows the intrinsic value method to account for the compensation cost of its stock based employee compensation plans. 
The compensation cost is amortised on a straight line basis.

1.16 Provisions and contingencies

 The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the 
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually 
certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

1.17 Provisioning on receivable from financing business

 Provision on receivable from financing business (for Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited and ECL Finance Limited, subsidiaries 
of the Company) is done in accordance with the prudential norms prescribed by RBI. In addition Edelweiss Finance & Investments 
Limited and ECL Finance Limited makes general provision based on analysis of its receivable portfolio except for initial public offer 
funding.

1.18 Mutual Fund expenses

 Expenses incurred on behalf of schemes of Edelweiss Mutual Fund are recognised to the profit and loss account unless considered 
recoverable from schemes of the fund in accordance with provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) 
Regulations.

1.19 Preliminary expenses

 Preliminary expenses are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.15 Employee stock option plans

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
2 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
100,000,000 (Previous year: 100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 5 (Previous year: Rs. 5) each  500.00  500.00 
4,000,000 (Previous year: 4,000,000) Preference shares of Rs. 5 (Previous year: Rs. 5) each  20.00  20.00 

 520.00  520.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 

75,071,893 (Previous year: 74,933,155) Equity shares of Rs. 5 
(Previous year: Rs. 5) each, fully paid-up

 375.36  374.67 

 375.36  374.67 

Bonus:
(a) Of the above, 44,916,806 equity shares of Re. 1 each (before consolidation of face value 

of equity share from Re. 1 per share to Rs. 5 per share) have been allotted as fully 
paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of Rs. 44.92 million from securities premium 
account.

(b) Of the above, 35,937,448 equity shares of Rs. 5 each have been allotted as fully paid up 
bonus shares by capitalisation of Rs. 179.69 million from securities premium account.

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

General reserve
Opening balance  163.82  89.11 
Add : Additions during the year  73.73  74.71 

 237.55  163.82 

Securities premium account
Opening balance  13,545.16  13,682.03 
Add : Additions / utilisation during the year  7.35  (136.87)

 13,552.51  13,545.16 

Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance  2.60  – 
Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account  5.00  2.60 

 7.60  2.60 

Statutory reserve under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening balance  538.28  343.24 
Add : Additions during the year  214.40  195.04 

 752.68  538.28 

Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Opening balance  –  – 
Add : Additions during the year  0.14  – 

 0.14  – 

Foreign exchange translation reserve  109.87  155.31 

Capital reserve
Opening balance  1,076.65  13.82 
Add : Additions during the year  35.19  1,062.83 

 1,111.84  1,076.65 

Balance in profit and loss account  6,407.19  5,284.41 

 22,179.38  20,766.23 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
4 SECURED LOANS

Bank overdraft  49.91  1,322.18 
(Secured by way of pledge of fixed deposits)
Collateralised borrowing  20.00  – 
(Secured by dated treasury bills)

Non-convertible debentures
(a) Secured by way of fixed charge on immovable property and floating 

charge on movable property in the form of sundry debtors, cash and 
bank balances and loans and advances  1,713.30  1,070.60 

(b) Secured by way of second charge on immovable property and 
floating charge on loans to subsidiary  2,930.00  – 

(c) Secured by way of charge on immovable property and floating 
charge on stock-in-trade  39.10  – 

(d) Secured by way of charge on immovable property and floating 
charge on loans and advances  2,500.00  – 

 7,182.40  1,070.60 

Vehicle loans  7.22  5.31 
(Secured by hypothecation of vehicles)
Housing loan  0.01  41.24 
(Secured by hypothecation of residential property)
  7,259.54  2,439.33 

5 UNSECURED LOANS

Fully convertible debentures  1,800.00  1,800.00 
Optionally fully convertible debentures  –  14.60 
Non-convertible debentures  6,200.00  – 
Inter-corporate deposit  403.50  310.70 
Deposits accepted  132.98  71.66 

Commercial paper  11,550.00  2,250.00 
Less: Unamortised discount on commercial paper  207.83  62.77 

 11,342.17  2,187.23 

Other loans  –  800.23 

 19,878.65  5,184.42 

6 MINORITY INTEREST

Opening balance  2,148.87  3,359.28 
Less: Movement during the year  (16.85)  (1,210.41)

 2,132.02  2,148.87 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
8 INVESTMENTS 

Long term investments
I. Quoted

Debentures and bonds  –  188.88 
 –  188.88 

II. Unquoted
(a) Equity shares

i) In subsidiary companies  2.49  0.10 
ii) In others  323.97  285.22 

(a)  326.46  285.32 

(b) Debentures and bonds (b)  57.57  – 

(c) Units of venture capital funds (c)  311.45  311.68 

(d) Others (d)  36.60  36.60 

(e) Investment in equity shares of associates
i) Equity shares with accrued benefits  56.24  42.44 
ii) Further investment in associates  15.70  – 
iii) Share of profit as subsidiary  –  (1.18)
iv) Transfer to capital reserve  –  0.60 
v) Share in (Loss) / profit of associates  (4.06)  14.38 

(e)  67.88  56.24 

(f) Investment in partnership firm
i) Capital Account

Opening Balance  –  – 
Add: Addition during the year  0.02  – 
Less: Drawings  –  – 

 0.02  – 
ii) Current Account

Opening Balance  –  – 
Add: Addition during the year  5.31  – 
Less: Drawings  –  – 

 5.31  – 

(f)  5.33  – 

Total (a to f)  805.29  689.84 

Less: Diminution in value of investments  54.72  34.03 
 750.57  655.81 

Total of long term investments  750.57  844.69 

Current investments
Unquoted

Equity shares  233.20  – 
Units of mutual funds  576.48  227.87 

Total of current investments  809.68  227.87 

 Total  1,560.25  1,072.56 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

A. Equity Shares (Quoted)
ABB Limited – –  –  2  340  0.14 
ACC Limited – –  –  10  300  0.17 
Ahmednagar Forgings Limited – –  –  10  98,532  3.07 
Ambuja Cements Limited – –  –  2  2,430  0.17 
Arvind Limited 10 210,737  7.12 –  –  – 
Ashapura Minechem Limited – –  –  2  10,053  0.24 
Axis Bank Limited – –  –  10  52,569  21.07 
B. L. Kashyap and Sons Limited – –  –  5  80,117  10.44 
Bajaj Hindusthan Limited – –  –  1  450,300  20.86 
Balaji Distilleries Limited 10 633,326  26.40 –  –  – 
Bharat Forge Limited – –  –  2  12,000  1.09 
Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited – –  –  10  780  1.18 
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited – –  –  10  36,875  12.92 
Bharti Airtel Limited – –  –  10  26,530  16.11 
BOC India Limited 10 39,607  7.08 –  –  – 
Bombay Rayon Fashions Limited – –  –  10  53,372  7.71 
Bongaigaon Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited – –  –  10  3,333,411  136.67 
Cairn India Limited – –  –  10  490,525  90.31 
Ceekay Daikin Limited 10 51  0.01 –  –  – 
Central Bank of India – –  –  10  80,000  2.59 
Cipla Limited – –  –  2  123,740  24.99 
Citigroup * – –  –  $0.10  4,000  0.31 
CMC Limited – –  –  10  2,634  0.81 
Cummins India Limited – –  –  2  1,900  0.35 
Disa India Limited – –  –  10  2,389  3.93 
Dish TV India Limited – –  –  1  12,440  0.30 
Dish TV India Limited (Partly Paid up) – –  –  1  7,819  0.06 
DLF Limited – –  –  2  2,710  0.45 
Elgi Equipments Limited – –  –  1  478  0.02 
Essar Oil Limited 10 1,280,000  176.90 –  –  – 
Fame India Limited 10 1,000  0.09 –  –  – 
Federal National Mortgage Association ** – 2,350  0.08 –  2,350  0.05 
Fem Care Pharma Limited – –  –  10  7,890  5.26 
Financial Technologies (India) Limited – –  –  2  74,453  39.05 
Freddie Mac *  $0.21 3,600  0.13  $0.21  3,600  0.08 
GAIL (India) Limited – –  –  10  252,900  58.13 
GeeCee Ventures Limited 10 17,243  1.54 –  –  – 
GMR Infrastructure Limited – –  –  2  205,000  19.44 
Good Year India Limited 10 2,259  0.65 –  –  – 
Grasim Industries Limited – –  –  10  314  0.48 
Gujarat NRE Coke Limited – –  –  10  86,713  1.71 
GVK Power & Infrastructure Limited – –  –  1  2,292,994  47.07 
HCL Technologies Limited – –  –  2  1,070  0.11 
HDFC Bank Limited – –  –  10  680  0.66 
Hero Honda Motors Limited – –  –  2  320  0.34 
Hindalco Industries Limited – –  –  1  59,003  2.96 
Hindustan Oil Exploration Co. Limited – –  –  10  51,200  2.89 
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited – –  –  10  10,400  2.66 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

Hindustan Unilever Limited – –  –  1  182,480  42.23 
Housing Development and Infrastructure Limited – –  –  10  442,277  79.35 
Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited – –  –  10  28,950  40.88 
ICICI Bank Limited – –  –  10  58,475  19.46 
IDBI Bank Limited – –  –  10  14,400  0.65 
Idea Cellular Limited – –  –  10  129,150  6.47 
IFCI Limited – –  –  10  141,840  2.63 
India Infoline Limited – –  –  2  1,169,185  53.60 
Indiabulls Securities Limited 2 25  0.01  2  20,306  0.43 
Indo Tech Transformers Limited – –  –  10  86,078  25.81 
Infosys Technologies Limited * – –  –  $1.00  3,800  4.69 
Infosys Technologies Limited – –  –  5  5,915  7.81 
Infrastructure Development Finance Company Limited – –  –  10  175,000  9.08 
Ispat Industries Limited – –  –  10  224,223  2.25 
ITC Limited – –  –  1  199,525  34.49 
Jaiprakash Associates Limited – –  –  2  387,000  28.79 
Jaiprakash Hydro-Power Limited – –  –  10  12,500  0.32 
Jet Airways (India) Limited – –  –  10  21,600  3.33 
Jindal Steel & Power Ltd. – –  –  1  13,760  15.54 
JSW Steel Limited – –  –  10  34,650  6.63 
Kalpataru Power Transmission Limited – –  –  10  7,052  2.30 
Karnataka Bank Limited 10 70,829  8.50 –  –  – 
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited – –  –  10  1,100  0.31 
Larsen & Toubro Limited @ 2 1 0.00  2  50,535  31.39 
Lehman Bros. *  $0.10 9,000  0.02  $0.10  9,000  0.01 
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited – –  –  10  445  0.17 
Maruti Suzuki India Limited – –  –  5  460  0.35 
Matrix Laboratories Limited – –  –  2  96,591  14.14 
MIC Electronics Limited 2 254,746  10.54  2  683,944  12.24 
MSK Projects (India) Limited 10 30,000  4.64 –  –  – 
Nagarjuna Fertilizer & Chemicals Limited – –  –  10  63,001  0.97 
National Aluminium Company Limited – –  –  10  1,030  0.22 
Network 18 Fincap Limited – –  –  5  10,442  0.72 
Network 18 Media and Investments Limited 10 246  0.02  5  144  0.01 
NIIT Limited – –  –  2  352,765  7.14 
NMDC Limited 1 220,760  65.00 –  –  – 
Novartis India Limited – –  –  10  56,738  20.13 
NTPC Limited – –  –  10  13,160  2.37 
Nufarm Limited 10 2,000  0.69 –  –  – 
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited – –  –  10  43,915  34.26 
Orbit Corporation Limited @ – –  –  10  10  0.00
Pantaloon Retail (India) Ltd. – –  –  2  6,800  0.80 
Pfizer * – –  –  $0.50  985  0.68 
PNB Gilts Limited 10 49,090  1.18  10  46,399  0.86 
Polaris Software Lab Limited – –  –  5  16,800  0.76 
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited – –  –  10  6,720  0.64 
Praj Industries Limited – –  –  2  57,200  3.01 
Punj Lloyd Limited – –  –  2  148,500  12.22 
Punjab National Bank – –  –  10  505  0.21 
Ranbaxy Laboratories Limited – –  –  10  299,870  49.69 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

Reliance Capital Limited – –  –  10  390  0.14 
Reliance Communications Limited – –  –  5  3,295  0.57 
Reliance Industries Limited @ 10 1 0.00  10  31,010  47.28 
Reliance Infrastructure Limited – –  –  10  194,117  100.03 
Reliance Natural Resources Limited – –  –  5  836,784  37.52 
Reliance Petroleum Limited – –  –  10  479,535  45.29 
Reliance Power Limited – –  –  10  3,825  0.39 
Shree Renuka Sugars Limited – –  –  2  290,000  20.22 
Shriram City Union Finance Limited – –  –  10  100  0.03 
Siemens Limited – –  –  2  11,068  2.57 
State Bank of India – –  –  10  5,503  5.75 
Steel Authority of India Limited – –  –  10  6,595  0.64 
Sterlite Industries ( India ) Limited – –  –  2  1,127  0.40 
Suashish Diamonds Limited 10 23,921  6.51 –  –  – 
Sun Pharmaceuticals Industries Limited – –  –  10  2,130  2.27 
Suzlon Energy Limited – –  –  2  2,390  0.10 
Take Solutions Limited – –  –  1  112,434  2.06 
Tata Communications Limited – –  –  10  456  0.24 
Tata Consultancy Services Limited – –  –  1  39,060  20.71 
Tata Motors Limited – –  –  10  720  0.13 
Tata Power Co. Limited – –  –  10  355  0.27 
Tata Steel Limited – –  –  10  1,165  0.24 
Television Eighteen India Limited – –  –  5  6,800  0.47 
The Karnataka Bank Limited 10 4,096  0.50 –  –  – 
Titan Industries Limited – –  –  10  412  0.32 
Unitech Limited – –  –  2  2,690  0.09 
United Breweries Limited – –  –  1  26,500  1.95 
UTV Software Communications Limited – –  –  10  68,945  13.73 
Welspun Gujarat Stahl Rohren Limited – –  –  10  92,800  5.86 
Wire And Wireless (India) Ltd. 1 10,000,000  60.00 – –  – 
Wipro Limited – –  –  2  16,735  4.04 
Yes Bank Limited – –  –  10  484,097  24.20 
Zee Entertainment Enterprises Limited – –  –  1  68,603  6.98 
Zee News Limited 1 37,934  2.23 – –  – 

 379.84  1,461.38 

B. Equity Shares (Unquoted)
Citigroup Global Services Limited 10 1  0.01  10  1  0.01 
Persistant System ltd 10 15,772 4.88 – – –
Pradip Overseas Ltd 10 54,311  5.97 – – –
Teledata Marine Solutions Limited 2 26,500  0.88  2  26,500  0.88 
Teledata Techno Limited – – –  2  26,500  0.88 

 11.74  1.77 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

C Preference Shares (Quoted)
 Network 18 Fincap Limited 5 39,150  3.10 5  39,492  3.13 

Tata Steel Limited – – – 100  160,296  5.16 
 3.10  8.29 

D. Preference Shares (Unquoted)
Ispat Industries Limited 10 6,000  0.13 10  6,000  0.13 

 0.13  0.13 

E. Debentures/Bonds (Quoted)
11.03% STFCL 2014 NCD 1,000 199,385  210.82  –  –  – 
10.75% STFCL 2012 NCD 1,000 478,715  497.77  –  –  – 
11% Annual STFC 2014 NCD 1,000 104,429  109.13  –  –  – 
8.40% L&T Finance Limited 08/03/2013 NCD 1,000 167,046  164.30  –  –  – 
8.50% L&T Finance Limited 08/03/2013 NCD 1,000 25,804  25.30  –  –  – 
10.24% L&T Finance Limited 2019 NCD 1,000 257,222  267.51  –  –  – 
11.25% Tata Capital 2014 NCD  –  –  –  1,000  622,999  660.76 
12% Tata Capital 2014 NCD  –  –  –  1,000  437,278  465.80 

1,274.83 1,126.56

F. Debentures/Bonds (Unquoted)
10.25% GOI 30/05/2021 100 2,000  0.23  –  –  – 
6.84% HDFC NCD 1,000,000 452  452.90  –  –  – 
10.40% Tata Steel Limited 2019 NCD 1,000,000 4  4.17  –  –  – 
8.00% RECL 2014 Bonds 1,000,000 200  195.90  –  –  – 
0% Sundaram Finance Limited 2011 NCD 1,000,000 250  222.21  –  –  – 
11.00% IDBI 2010 Bonds 100,000 40  4.02  –  –  – 
6.70% Canara Bank 2010 Bonds 500,000 1  0.50  –  –  – 
6.90% Union Bank 2010 Bonds 1,000,000 5  5.00  –  –  – 
7.90% RECL 2012 Bonds 1,000,000 250  250.60  –  –  – 
0% Sundaram Finance Limited 2012 NCD 1,000,000 250  203.08  –  –  – 
12.50% Deccan Cronical 2012 Bonds 10,000,000 10  105.50  –  –  – 
7.40% Tata Capital Limited 2011 NCD 1,000,000 200  200.00  –  –  – 
8.30% Tata Capital Limited 2012 NCD 1,000,000 250  250.00  –  –  – 
7.50% Bank of Maharashtra 2013 Bonds 1,000,000 1  0.97  –  –  – 
8.20% GOI 2022 Bonds 100 586,000  58.87  –  –  – 
8.33% Union Bank 2016 Bond 1,000,000 199  197.01  –  –  – 
8.65% RECL 2020 Bonds 1,000,000 50  49.13  –  –  – 
9.65% Yes Bank 2020 Bonds 1,000,000 612  608.94  –  –  – 
9.05% SBI Perpetual Bonds 1,000,000 150  149.06  –  –  – 
9.15% Electrosteel 2013 Bonds 1,000,000 600  598.80  –  –  – 
0.001% ICICI Bank Pref Shares 20/04/2018 10,000,000 40  139.28  –  –  – 
10.75% Tata Motors Finance Limited 25/03/2020 NCD 500,000 800  400.00  –  –  – 
10.90% Tata Motors Finance Limited 2020 NCD 500,000 269  134.63  –  –  – 
5.95% NTPC 2011 Bonds 200,000 20  3.87  –  –  – 
6.30% GOI 2023 Bonds 100 3,000  0.25  –  –  – 
8.90% PFC 15/03/2025 Bonds 1,000,000 7  6.98  –  –  – 
8.95% IDBI Bank 2024 Bonds 1,000,000 80  80.00  –  –  – 
8.95% PFC 30/03/2015 Bonds 1,000,000 50  50.00  –  –  – 
8.95% PFC 30/03/2020 Bonds 1,000,000 50  50.18  –  –  – 
8.95% PFC 30/03/2025 Bonds 1,000,000 275  272.63  –  –  – 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

9.35% Religare Finvest Limited 14/10/2011 NCD 1,000,000 250  254.24  –  –  – 
9.50% NABARD 2012 Bonds 1,000,000 9  9.21  –  –  – 
9.95% Tata Motors Limited 2020 Bonds 1,000,000 197  196.95  –  –  – 
0.00% ETHL Comm. Holdings Limited NCD 22/1/2011 1,000,000 450  401.79  –  –  – 
8.75% Reliance Capital 2011 Bonds 1,000,000 202  202.84  –  –  – 
Treasury Bill 23/04/2010 100 500,000  49.88  –  –  – 
10.70% IRFC 2023 Bonds  –  –  –  1,000,000  12  13.46 
11.30% IDBI 2018 Bond  –  –  –  1,000,000  53  58.71 
6.05% GOI 2019 Bonds  –  –  –  100  500,000  46.51 
6.85% IIFCL 2014 Tax Free Series II  –  –  –  100,000  6,496  648.87 
7.60% HUDCO 2013  –  –  –  1,000,000  4  3.53 
Citicorp Finance Debenture - Series 225 – – –  100,000  1,000  100.00 
ECL 24/04/2008  –  –  –  990,402  180  178.27 
Trent Limited – – –  1,000  6  0.01 

5,809.62 1,049.36

G. Mutual Fund (Quoted)
Kotak Sensex  –  –  –  10  23,686  2.30 
Benchmark Mutual Fund  –  –  –  10  30,854  8.93 

– 11.23

H. Mutual Fund (Unquoted)
DSP BR Small and Midcap Fund 10 1,640,982  25.00  –  –  – 
Reliance Long Term Equity Fund 10 1,822,040  25.00  –  –  – 
Edelweiss MF - Nifty Enhancer Fund Plan B - Dividend 
Reinvestment 10 8,149,635  94.64  –  –  – 
Edelweiss MF - Absolute Return Equity Fund - 
Dividend Reinvestment 10 9,975,000  101.04  –  –  – 
Edelweiss GILT Fund - Growth Plan 10 150,000  1.50  –  –  – 
Edelweiss Income Advantage Fund - Dividend - 
Reinvestment 10 35,000,000  350.00  –  –  – 
Edelweiss Short Term Bond Fund - Institutional - 
Dividend Plan (Daily) - Reinvestment 10 20,026,575  200.42  –  –  – 
Edelweiss Diversified Growth Equity Fund - Plan B - 
Div - Reinvestment 10 3,990,000  52.11  –  –  – 
Edelweiss MF - Monthly Interval Fund - Series 1 - 
Institutional Growth 10 289,283  3.00  –  –  – 
Edelweiss MF - Quarterly Interval Fund - Series 1 - 
Retail Growth 10 28,135  0.30  –  –  – 

853.01 –

I. Warrants (Quoted)
HDFC Limited 31,450  12.49  –  – 
Network 18 Fincap Limited – –  228,120  4.40 
Orbit Corporation Limited – –  276,246  1.80 
Renaissance Jewellery Limited – –  5,000  0.01 

 12.49  6.21 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9  STOCK IN TRADE (Continued) Face value  Quantity  Amount Face value  Quantity  Amount 

J. Certificate of Deposits/Commercial Papers
Axis Bank CD 10/12/2010 2,000  190.77 – –
Federal Bank CD 10/09/2010 10,000  975.33 – –
State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur CD 28/09/2009 – –  70  6.71 
IDBI Bank Limited CD - 29/09/2009 – –  5,000  481.73 
Tata Motors Finance Ltd CP -12/11/2010 1,500  717.69 

1,883.79 488.44

K. Commodity#
Cotton Oil Seed Cake 3,602,503  37.03 – –
Zinc Ingots –  – 100,305  7.37 
Chana 228,625  5.17 – –
Gaur Seed 557,083  12.53 – –
Jeera 767,040  90.08  – –
Goldmini 35  56.49  18  26.98 
Gold 286  466.56  201  301.38 
Silver 18,056  481.86 7,926  152.66 

 1,149.72  488.39 

L. Land  127.56  – 

 11,505.83  4,641.76 

* Face value in USD
** no par value
# Quantity in Kgs.
@ Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 million

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
10 SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months
(a) Considered good  30.74  11.35 
(b) Considered doubtful  84.46  86.36 

 115.20  97.71 
Other debts
(a) Considered good  817.57  423.89 
(b) Considered doubtful  5.06  10.08 

 822.63  433.97 
 937.83  531.68 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts  89.52  96.44 

 848.31  435.24 

11 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  0.40  0.88 
Cheques in hand  64.63  385.54 
Balances with scheduled banks
- in Current accounts  973.27  2,923.70 
- in Fixed deposits (Refer schedule 25.12)  15,669.75  13,608.55 

Balances with other banks
- in Current accounts  268.26  26.74 
-  in Fixed deposits  22.57  – 

 16,998.88  16,945.41 

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Unsecured and considered good)

Accrued interest on fixed deposits  453.70  668.55 
Accrued interest on inter-corporate deposits  10.55  1.88 
Accrued interest on debt instruments  15.23  14.78 
Accrued interest on loans  0.59  0.24 
Dividend receivable  –  23.80 
Margin for government securities  3.29  0.75 

 483.36  710.00 

13 RECEIVABLE FROM FINANCING BUSINESS

Loans given
- Secured  17,300.40  5,503.34 
- Unsecured  1,094.84  805.86 

 18,395.24  6,309.20 
Less : Provision for non-performing assets  22.53  14.10 

 18,372.71  6,295.10 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
14 LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received  2,686.36  1,570.10 
Loans given  3,335.01  – 
Deposits placed with exchange/depositories  1,042.30  678.19 
Deposits - others  236.63  333.69 
Inter-corporate deposits placed  68.00  148.00 
Initial margin  –  1,205.00 

Mark-to-Market Margin - Equity Index/Stock Futures  100.22  285.08 
Less: Provision for loss on Equity Index/Stock Futures  100.22  285.08 

– –

Equity Index/Stock Options Premium Account  817.93  1,043.79 
Less: Provision for loss on Equity Index/Stock Options  571.11  68.30 

 246.82  975.49 

Mark-to-Market Margin - Commodity Futures  10.33  31.90 
Less: Provision for loss on Commodity Futures  10.33  31.90 

 –  – 

Advance tax and tax deducted at source  374.85  21.72 
(Net of provision for taxation Rs. 4,315.56 million; Previous Year : Rs. 3,242.06 million)

Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement  6.70  – 

 7,996.67  4,932.19 

15 CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Sundry creditors  4,121.83  2,289.84 
Book overdraft  37.58  377.22 

Equity Index/Stock Options Premium Account  196.06  828.71 
Add: Provision for Loss on Equity Index/Stock Options  241.21  160.50 
  437.27  989.21 

Mark-to-Market Margin - Commodity Futures  88.13  61.27 
Mark-to-Market Margin - Equity Index/Stock Futures  15.00  93.37 
Income received in advance  60.62  – 
Interest accrued but not due on unsecured loan  652.95  144.88 
Other liabilities  305.00  205.93 

 5,718.38  4,161.72 

16 PROVISIONS
Gratuity  46.04  37.11 
Provision for deferred bonus  555.63  675.59 
Proposed dividend  600.73  224.80 
Dividend distribution tax  99.80  12.20 
General loan loss provision  93.16  58.20 
Other provisions  –  6.11 

 1,395.36  1,014.01 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
17 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Income from broking  2,079.31  1,647.94 
Investment banking fees  685.04  195.13 
Advisory and other fees  739.69  598.14 

 3,504.04  2,441.21 

18 INCOME FROM TREASURY OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) on trading in securities (net)  3,130.71  (2,096.25)
(Loss)/profit on trading in equity derivative instruments (net)  (905.36)  4,163.78 
(Loss)/profit on trading in currency derivative instruments (net)  (180.45)  4.03 
Profit on trading in interest rate derivative instruments (net)  3.49  – 
(Loss)/profit on trading in commodity derivative instruments (net)  (404.40)  788.76 
Profit/(loss) on trading in commodities (net)  810.62  (348.66)

 2,454.61  2,511.66 

19 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS AND DIVIDEND  
Gain on structured products  –  28.97 
Profit on sale of current investments (net)  212.06  197.39 
Profit on sale of long term investments  13.46  117.90 
Dividend on stock in trade  54.63  139.45 
Dividend on current investments  59.38  152.81 
Dividend on long term investments  0.45  48.17 
Share in (loss)/profit of associate companies  (4.06)  12.70 
Share in profit of Partnership firm  6.64  – 

 342.56  697.39 

20 INTEREST INCOME
Interest income on
- Loan  1,426.40  1,442.14 
- Inter corporate deposits  8.95  19.75 
- Fixed deposits  1,429.26  1,663.17 
- Debt instruments  489.47  159.47 
- Margin  0.04  6.40 
Other interest income  34.98  23.71 

 3,389.10  3,314.64 

21 OTHER INCOME
Write back of doubtful advances and excess expense provision  57.23  2.79 
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)  13.88  0.07 
Profit on sale of receivable  5.62  2.44 
Provision on depreciation in value of current investments written back  –  5.26 
Diminution in value of long term investments written back  –  1.25 
Bad debts recovered  –  0.32 
Miscellaneous income  10.95  27.93 

 87.68  40.06 

22 EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and bonus  1,579.78  1,605.95 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  14.82  13.79 
Gratuity  10.52  12.88 
Staff welfare  16.56  26.73 

 1,621.68  1,659.35 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
23 OPERATING AND OTHER EXPENSES

Advertisement and business promotion  109.08  59.69 
Auditors' remuneration  10.79  9.58 
Bad debts and advances written off  42.23  13.92 
Commission and brokerage  96.81  46.28 
Computer software and other expenses  63.41  83.60 
Directors' sitting fees  2.73  1.46 
Donation  31.00  9.82 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  139.16  1.57 
General loan loss provision  34.96  12.69 
Goodwill on consolidation  0.76  – 
Legal and professional fees  227.87  151.06 
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)  0.18  0.31 
Membership and subscription  50.64  48.43 
Miscellaneous expenses  97.66 20.22 
Mutual fund expenses  6.45  9.80 
Postage and courier  13.00  13.36 
Printing and stationery  35.18  33.13 
Provision for non-performing assets  8.43  14.10 
Provision for diminution in value of long term investments  18.30  18.30 
Preliminary expenses  1.24  4.08 
Provision for doubtful debts  0.26  48.68 
Rates and taxes  44.87  83.41 
Rent  340.86  347.11 
Repairs and maintenance - others  9.47  9.68 
Securities transaction tax  636.02  720.38 
Seminar and conference  30.58  34.17 
Service tax expenses  180.05  169.13 
Stock exchange expenses  252.03  259.11 
Travelling and conveyance  95.88  103.53 
Utilities  183.12  202.72 

 2,763.02  2,529.32 

24 FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Interest on
- Debentures  1,412.90  629.95 
- Inter-corporate deposits  31.81  41.14 
- Bank overdraft  3.12  20.09 
- Deposits  12.35  16.16 
- Margin  4.16  – 
Other interest expense  56.72  107.44 
Discount on commercial paper  329.10  460.64 
Interest on interest rate swaps  –  12.34 
Financial charges  21.10  0.52 
Bank charges  71.52  61.01 

 1,942.78  1,349.29 



87Consolidated Financial Statements

EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
25.1 Segment reporting 

 The Group’s business is organised and management reviews the performance based on the business segments as mentioned 
below:

Segment Activities covered

Agency business Broking, advisory and product distribution services

Capital based business Income from treasury operations, investment income and wholesale financing

 Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identifiable with 
individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

 Based on such allocations, segmental balance sheet as at 31 March 2010 and segmental profit & loss account for the year ended 31 
March 2010 have been prepared.

 Since the business operations of the Group are primarily concentrated in India, the Group is considered to operate only in the domestic 
segment.

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties 

 (A) Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise that gives them control 
or significant influence over the enterprise:

  Rashesh Shah

  Venkat Ramaswamy

 (B) Key management personnel: 

  Naresh Kothari

  Hiralal Chopra

  Ravi Bubna

 (C) Relatives of individuals exercising significant influence:

  Vidya Shah

  Aparna T. C.

  Neel Shah

  Kaavya Venkat

  Shilpa Mody

  Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah

  A V Ramaswamy

 (D) Enterprises where significant influence is exercised, with whom transactions have taken place:

  Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust

  Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited

  Blue River Capital Management Company 1, LLC

  Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

  Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited.

  Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited

  Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited

 (E) Subsidiary Companies:

  Edelgive Foundation 

  Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC

 (F) Enterprise which exercise significant influence over subsidiary, with whom transactions have taken place: 

  Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Limited (Subsidiary of Tokio Marine Holdings Inc.)

 (G) Enterprise which exercise significant influence over group, with whom transactions have taken place:

  Oak Holdings Private Limited
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Capital account transactions
Equity shares investments 

Edelgive Foundation  – 
(0.10)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 13.72 

(10.28)

Equity share capital issued by subsidiary (including 
securities premium)

Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., 
Limited

 18.65 

 (–) 

Share Application Money received by subsidiary
Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., 
Limited

 201.15 

 (–) 

Non-convertible debentures subscribed by
Oak Holdings Private Limited  20.00 

 (29.50)
Aparna T. C.  – 

 (5.00)
Kaavya Venkat  – 

 (4.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  – 

 (4.00)

Preference shares redeemed
Rashesh Shah  – 

 (2.60)

Loans Given
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  1,031.88 

 (201.65)
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  7.81 

 (7.17)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 21.28 

 (0.54)

Loans Repaid
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  12.65 

 (–) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  8.60 
 (15.61)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 21.82 

 (–) 

Reimbursement recovered
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  9.21 

 (2.76)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.18 

 (0.05)
Oak Holdings Private Limited  0.02 

 (0.01)
Edelgive Foundation  0.09 

 (0.26)

Inter-corporate deposits accepted
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  – 

 (10.90)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 – 

 (0.75)

Inter-corporate deposits repaid
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  – 

 (29.70)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 – 

 (0.75)

Dividend paid
Rashesh Shah  65.11 

 (21.73)
Venkat Ramaswamy  26.51 

 (10.61)
Aparna T. C.  6.00 

 (2.40)
Kaavya Venkat  6.00 

 (2.40)
Vidya Shah  15.18 

 (6.07)
A V Ramaswamy  0.03 

 (0.01)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Shilpa Mody  0.00*

 (0.00)*

Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah  0.01 

 (4.33)

Oak Holdings Private Limited  24.00 

 (14.40)

Interest income

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.08 

 (0.29)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.05 

 (0.04)

Fee received

Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private 
Limited

 – 

 (3.00)

Purchase of securities acting as a broker

Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  1,025.29 

 (203.90)

Rashesh Shah  388.69 

 (–) 

Vidya Shah  198.13 

 (219.77)

Aparna T. C.  0.09 

 (184.60)

Sale of securities acting as a broker

Rashesh Shah  0.92 

 (1.76)

Vidya Shah  187.36 

 (201.42)

Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah 0.07

 (1.08)

Aparna T. C.  2.13 

 (176.18)

Naresh Kothari  0.63 

 (–) 

Hiralal Chopra  1.20 

 (–) 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Sale of Commodities
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  16.30 

 – 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  16.38 

 – 

Brokerage earned
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  0.04 

 (0.00)*
Rashesh Shah  0.23 

 (0.00)*
Vidya Shah  0.12 

 (0.29)
Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah  0.00*

 (0.00)*
Aparna T. C.  0.00*

 (0.35)
Naresh Kothari  0.00*

 (–) 
Hiralal Chopra  0.00*

 (–) 

Remuneration
Rashesh Shah  20.57 

 (12.22)
Venkat Ramaswamy  15.97 

 (10.52)
Ravi Bubna  18.49 

 (–) 
Naresh Kothari  8.57 

 (9.44)
Hiralal Chopra  1.83 

 (2.11)

Interest Expense on non-convertible debentures
Oak Holdings Private Limited  5.86 

 (0.20)
Aparna T. C.  1.26 

 (–) 
Kaavya Venkat  1.01 

 (–) 
Venkat Ramaswamy  1.01 

 (–) 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Interest Expense on inter-corporate deposits

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  – 

 (0.24)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 – 

 (0.01)

Rent paid

Aparna T. C.  – 

 (0.68)

Vidya Shah  1.54 

 (4.41)

Donations given

Edelgive Foundation  27.30 

 (5.48)

Common expenses recovered

Shared staff cost

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  9.44 

 (15.00)

Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.10 

 (–) 

Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.10 

 (–) 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 1.50 

 (–) 

Rent

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.25 

 (0.60)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.50 

 (–) 

Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.03 

 (–) 

Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.03 

 (–) 

Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private 
Limited

 – 

 (4.03)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Utilities
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.09 

 (0.30)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.18 

 (–) 
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.01 

 (–) 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.01 

 (–) 
Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private 
Limited

 – 

 (0.53)

Printing and stationery
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.01 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.03 

 (–) 
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00*

 (–) 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 

Repairs and maintenance
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  0.01 

 (–) 

Computer software and other expenses
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.01 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.02 

 (–) 
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 
Legal and professional fees

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.01 
 (–) 

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.01 

 (–) 

Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 

Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.00* 

 (–) 

Travelling and conveyance

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.00*

 (–) 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 0.01 

 (–) 

Balances with related parties

Investments

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.50 

 (0.50)

Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private 
Limited

 0.10 

 (0.10)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 24.50 

 (10.78)

Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC  2.39 

 (–) 

Edelgive Foundation  0.10 

 (0.10)

Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  1.00 

 (–) 

Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  1.00 

 (–) 

Blue River Capital Management Company 1, 
LLC

 0.18 

 (0.20)

Loans

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 – 

 (0.54)

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  – 

 (0.79)

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Oak Holdings Private Limited  – 
 (0.21)

Advances
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  9.75 

 (5.06)
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company 
Limited

 2.26 

 (0.02)
Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  1,444.05 

 (424.82)
Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private 
Limited

 1.62 

 (3.31)
Edelgive Foundation  – 

 (0.21)
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  0.14 

 (–) 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  0.14 

 (–) 
Ravi Bubna  3.22 

 (–) 

Sundry Debtors
Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited  16.46 

 (–) 
Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited  16.54 

 (–) 

Non-convertible debenture outstanding
Oak Holdings Private Limited  22.50 

 (29.50)
Aparna T. C.  5.00 

 (5.00)
Kaavya Venkat  4.00 

 (4.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  4.00 

 (4.00)

Interest payable on non-convertible debentures

Oak Holdings Private Limited  6.06 
 (0.20)

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.2 Related parties (Continued)

 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

 Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 
influence 

 Enterprises 
where 

significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Subsidiary 
Companies 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over 
subsidiary 

 Enterprises 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

over group 

Aparna T. C.  1.26 
 (–) 

Kaavya Venkat  1.01 
 (–) 

Venkat Ramaswamy  1.01 
 (–) 

Bonus payable
Rashesh Shah  15.00 

 (13.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  12.00 

 (11.70)
Naresh Kothari  3.50 

 (4.00)
Ravi Bubna  13.00 

 (–) 

Amounts in brackets represent previous year numbers
* Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 million

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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25. Notes to the accounts (Continued)
25.3 Earnings per share

 In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 – Earnings Per Share prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the 
computation of earnings per share is set out below: 

2010 2009

a) Shareholders earnings (as per profit and loss account) 2,291.60 1,864.44
Less: Preference dividend declared by the Company (including dividend distribution tax ) – 0.30
Net profit available to equity shareholders for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted 
earnings per share 2,291.60 1,864.14

b) Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 5 each:
 – Number of shares at the beginning of the year 74,933,155 74,933,155

– Number of shares issued during the year 138,738 –
 Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 75,071,893 74,933,155
 Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date 

of issue of shares) 74,999,515 74,933,155

c) Number of dilutive potential equity shares 3,016,562 1,829,176

d) Basic earnings per share (in rupees) {a/b} 30.56 24.88

e) Diluted earnings per share (in rupees) {a/(b+c)} 29.37 24.28

25.4 Deferred taxes

 The primary components relating to deferred tax assets are as follows: 

2010 2009

Deferred tax asset
Tax effect of the timing differences on account of:
General loan loss provision 30.94 21.32
Provision for advances 8.89 11.99
Provision for mark to market loss on outstanding future and option contracts 272.55 175.71
Difference between book and tax depreciation 27.18 18.62
Disallowance under section 43B 238.37 277.35
Provision for doubtful debts 15.12 31.07
Preliminary expenses allowed under section 35 D 1.33 1.48
Provision for non-performing assets 7.48 3.25
Amortisation of income on sale of receivable 0.97 1.51
Carried forward losses – 0.02

  
Deferred tax asset 602.83 542.32

  

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

 (A) Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

  Amount of Rs. 14.82 million (Previous year: Rs. 13.79 million) is recognised as expenses and included in “ Employee Costs” – 
Schedule 22 in the profit and loss account.

 (B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

  The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognised in the profit and loss account and the fund 
status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit plan.

  Profit and loss account

  Net employee benefit expenses (recognised in employee costs)

2010 2009
Current service cost 15.21 25.17
Interest on defined benefit obligation 3.61 4.49
Expected return on plan assets – 0.09
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in the year – –
Past service cost – –
Actuarial (gain)/losses (8.30) (16.87)
 
Total included in 'employee benefit expense' 10.52 12.88
   

  Balance sheet

  Details of provision for gratuity

 2010 2009
Liability at the end of the year 46.04 37.11
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year – –
Difference 46.04 37.11
Unrecognised past service cost – –
Unrecognised transition liability – –
 
Amount in Balance sheet 46.04 37.11

  Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 2010 2009
Liability at the beginning of the year 37.11 24.25
Interest cost 3.48 3.88
Current service cost 14.99 25.57
Past service cost (non vested benefit) – –
Past service cost (vested benefit) – –
Benefits paid (1.58) (0.03)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (7.96) (16.56)

Liability at the end of the year 46.04 37.11

  Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

 2010 2009
Discount rate 7.50% 7.00%
Salary escalation 8.00% 8.00%
Employee attrition rate 2.00%-15.00% 2.00%-15.00%

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.5 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised ) - Employee Benefits
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

 The Group has taken various premises on operating lease. Gross rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2010 aggregated to 
Rs.340.86 million (Previous year Rs. 347.11 million) which has been included under the head Operating expenses – Rent in the profit 
and loss account. 

 Details of future minimum lease payments for non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2010 2009
Minimum lease payments for non-cancellable lease 
– not later than one year 164.34 103.67
– later than one year and not later than five years 114.97 93.10
– later than five years – –

Total 279.31 196.77

25.7 A) Open interest in Equity Index/Stock Futures as at the balance sheet date:

  Long Position

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Number of 
Units Involved

1 India Infoline Limited 29-Apr-10 10  25,000.00 
2 Reliance Industries Limited 29-Apr-10 9  2,700.00 
3 S&P CNX Nifty 29-Apr-10 41  2,050.00 
4 10 year UK Treasury Bond 21-Jun-10 65 65,000.00

  Short Position

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Number of
Units Involved

1 GBP futures - UK Treasury 28-Jun-10 30 30,000.00
2 2 year US Treasury Notes 30-Jun-10 12 24,000.00

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.6 Operating leases
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

  Long Position

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Measurement 
Unit

Number of 
Units Involved

1 Gold 995 5-Apr-10 30 Kgs 30.00
2 Gold Mini 995 5-Apr-10 821 Kgs 82.10
3 Chilli 20-Apr-10 10 Kgs 50,000.00
4 Gaur Seed 20-Apr-10 29 Kgs 290,000.00
5 Soyabean 20-Apr-10 251 Kgs 2,510,000.00
6 Copper 30-Apr-10 3,778 Kgs 3,778,000.00
7 Nickel 30-Apr-10 245 Kgs 61,250.00
8 Zinc 30-Apr-10 406 Kgs 2,030,000.00
9 Silver 5-May-10 3111 Kgs 93,330.00
10 Gaur Gum 20-May-10 47 Kgs 235,000.00
11 Gold 995 5-Jun-10 632 Kgs 632.00
12 Gold-GC 28-Jun-10 166 Troy Ounces 16,600.00
13 Gold-YG 28-Jun-10 17 Fine Troy 

Ounces
564.40

  Short Position

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Measurement 
Unit

Number of 
Units Involved

1 Gold 995 5-Apr-10 571 Kgs  571.00 
2 Gold Mini 995 5-Apr-10 14,141 Kgs  1,414.00 
3 Cotton Seed Cake 20-Apr-10 373 Kgs  3,730,000.00 
4 Gaur Gum 20-Apr-10 47 Kgs  235,000.00 
5 Jeera 20-Apr-10 129 Kgs  387,000.00 
6 Rape Must Seed 20-Apr-10 277 Kgs  2,770,000.00 
7 Wheat 20-Apr-10 71 Kgs  710,000.00 
8 Aluminium 30-Apr-10 43 Kgs  215,000.00 
9 Lead 30-Apr-10 1,159 Kgs  5,795,000.00 
10 Gold Mini 995 5-May-10 23,102 Kgs  2,310.20 
11 Chana 20-May-10 27 Kgs  270,000.00 
12 Cotton Seed Cake 20-May-10 8 Kgs  80,000.00 
13 Jeera 20-May-10 37 Kgs  111,000.00 
14 Soyabean 20-May-10 251 Kgs  2,510,000.00 
15 Gold Mini 995 5-Jun-10 3910 Kgs  391.00 
16 Chilli 18-Jun-10 10 Kgs  50,000.00 
17 Crude 20-Apr-10 1 Barrels 1,000.00
18 Silver 26-May-10 674 Troy Ounces 3,370,000.00
19 Silver 28-Jul-10 1 Troy Ounces 5,000.00
20 Copper 26-May-10 232 Pounds 5,800,000.00

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.7 B) Open interest in Commodity Futures as at the balance sheet date:
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

  Long Position

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Number of 
Units Involved

1 Euro 28-Apr-10 500 500,000.00
2 GBP 28-Apr-10 1 1,000.00
3 JPY 28-Apr-10 600 600,000.00
4 USD 27-May-10 450 450,000.00
5 USD 28-Jun-10 219 219,000.00
6 USD 28-Jul-10 10 10,000.00

  Short Position 

Sr. 
No.

Name of Future Series of 
Future

Number of 
contracts

Number of 
Units Involved

1 USD 28-Apr-10 31,095 31,095,000.00
2 USD 27-May-10 1,048 1,048,000.00
3 USD 28-Jun-10 1,305 1,305,000.00
4 GBP 14-Jun-10 4 250,000.00
5 CAD 15-Jun-10 3 300,000.00
6 Euro 14-Jun-10 11 1,375,000.00
7 JPY 14-Jun-10 3 37,500,000.00
8 CHF 14-Jun-10 1 125,000.00
9 Dollar Index 14-Jun-10 37 37,000.00
10 JPY mini 14-Jun-10 1 6,250,000.00

25.8 Option contracts outstanding as on the balance sheet date:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Option – Index/Stock Total premium carried forward at 31 March 2010
(Net of provisions made) 

1 S&P CNX Nifty (200.23) 
2 IFCI 0.03
3 Australian Dollars 0.04
4 Crude 0.25
5 Gold 0.93
6 Great Britain Pound (0.04)
7 JPY options – Nikkei 8.57

 Total (190.45)

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.7 C) Open interest in Currency Derivatives as at the balance sheet date:
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.9 Employee stock option plans 

 The Company has currently six Employee Stock Option Plans (‘Plans’) in force. The Plans provide that the Company’s employees and 
those of its subsidiaries are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that vests in a graded manner. The options may 
be exercised within a specified period.

 The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock based compensation plans. Compensation cost is measured 
as the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the underlying share over the exercise price.

 During the year, the Company has issued ESOP 2009 Plan wherein stock options were granted to employees where the exercise price 
was linked to either closing market price of the shares on the date of the grant or book value of the shares as per the last audited 
balance sheet as on the date of the grant, whichever is higher. The schedule of stock options vesting period is as follows:-

Sr. No. Vesting Date Maximum % of Options that shall Vest
1 36 months from the date of grant 30 (Thirty)% of grant
2 48 months from the date of grant 30 (Thirty)% of grant
3 60 months from the date of grant 40 (Forty)% of grant

Total 100 (One Hundred)% of grant 

 For determination of compensation cost, the Company has assumed the exercise price to be the specified amount.

 During the previous year, the Company has issued ESOP 2008 Plan wherein stock options were granted to employees with a variable 
exercise price (i.e. the exercise price was linked to either a discount on market price at the time of exercise or a specified amount, 
whichever is higher). The stock options vested after one year from the date of grant. For determination of compensation cost, the 
Company has assumed the exercise price to be the specified amount.

 With respect to stock options granted upto 31 March 2008, the fair market value of the underlying shares has been determined based 
on an independent valuer’s report as these stock options were granted by the Company to its employees when it was not listed on 
the stock exchanges. The fair value under stock options granted during the year is arrived as stipulated in the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The compensation cost 
recorded in the profit and loss account for the year is Rs. 7.63 million (Previous year: Rs.6.80 million).
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.9 Employee stock option plans (Continued) 

 (*) Pricing formula: 

 ESOP 2008 (I)

Period during which vested 
options are exercised

From the date of vesting to 
31 December 2010

From 1 January 2011 to 
31 December 2011

Exercise price payable for such vested 
options 

10% discount to market price or Rs. 1,200; 
whichever is higher; otherwise Rs. 1,200.

10% discount to the reference price
i.e., average of closing price of grant date 
and 14 days preceding the grant date

 ESOP 2008 (III)

Period during which vested 
options are exercised

From the date of vesting to 
31 December 2012

From 1 January 2013 to 
31 December 2013

Exercise price payable for such vested 
options 

In case shares are listed, 10% discount 
to market price or Rs. 1,200; whichever is 
higher; otherwise Rs. 1,200.

10% discount to the reference price 
i.e., average of closing price of grant date 
and 14 days preceding the grant date

 ESOP 2007 (I)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date of vesting 
to 30 September 2008

From 1 October 2008 to 
30 September 2009

From 1 October 2009 to 
30 September 2010

From 1 October 2010 to 
30 September 2011

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options 

In case shares are listed, 
10 % discount to market 
price or Rs. 1,167; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 1,167.

In case shares are 
listed, 25 % discount to 
market price or Rs. 833; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 833.

Rs. 583 Rs. 217

 ESOP 2007 (II)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date 
of vesting to 
30 June 2008

From 1 July 2008 to 
30 June 2009

From 1 July 2009 to 
30 June 2010

From 1 July 2010 to 
30 June 2011

From 1 July 2011 to 
30 June 2012

Exercise price 
payable for such 
vested options

In case shares 
are listed, 10% 
discount to market 
price or Rs. 1,167; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 1,167.

In case shares are 
listed, 25% discount 
to market price or 
Rs. 833; whichever 
is higher; otherwise 
Rs. 833.

In case shares are 
listed, 50% discount 
to market price or 
Rs. 667; whichever 
is higher; otherwise 
Rs. 667.

Rs. 500 Rs. 333

 ESOP 2007 (III)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date of vesting 
to 31 December 2007

From 1 January 2008 to 
31 December 2008

From 1 January 2009 to 
31 December 2009

From 1 January 2010 to 
31 December 2010

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options

Rs. 1,167 In case shares are 
listed, 25% discount to 
market price or Rs. 833; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 833.

In case shares are 
listed, 50% discount to 
market price or Rs. 667; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 667.

Rs. 517

 (**) Range of Exercise price

 ESOP 2009 

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options 

Closing market price of the shares on the date of the grant or book value of 
the shares as per the last audited balance sheet as on the date of the grant, 
whichever is higher.

Rs. 394.40 to Rs. 502.60



107Consolidated Financial Statements

EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.9 Employee stock option plans (Continued)

 Following summarises the information about stock options outstanding as at 31 March 2010:

Plan 
ESOP 
2002 

Scheme D 

ESOP 
2004 

Scheme F 

ESOP 
2006 

Scheme G 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme I 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme II 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme III 

ESOP 
2008 

Scheme I

ESOP 
2008 

Scheme III 

ESOP 
2009 

- Range of exercise price Rs. 5.00 to 
Rs. 79.17 

Rs. 10.42 to 
Rs.166.67 

Rs. 79.17 to 
Rs.166.67 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Rs. 394.40 
to 

Rs. 502.60

- Number of shares arising out 
of options  3,000  677,717  1,761,300  348,950  649,600  1,592,200  354,800  354,800  2,023,800

- Weighted average life of 
outstanding options (in 
years)  1.50  3.83  4.77  1.50  2.25  0.75  1.75  3.75  6.19 

          

 Weighted average exercise 
prices of stock options          

- outstanding at the beginning 
of the year  42.08  83.07  90.87  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15 N.A.

- granted during the year  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  399.97 

- forfeited/cancelled during 
the year  N.A.  34.18  N.A.  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  395.28 

- exercised during the year  N.A. 37.14 79.17  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A. 

- outstanding at the end of the 
year  42.08  17.56  91.09  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  401.39 

- exercisable at the end of the 
year  42.08  81.02  79.17  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  N.A. 

 The weighted average market share price for stock options exercised during the year is Rs. 433.29 (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

 Fair value methodology

 The fair value of options used to compute pro-forma net income and earnings per share have been estimated on the dates of each 
grant, on or after the date the ‘Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments’, issued by the council of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, became applicable, i.e. 1 April 2005, using the black-scholes option pricing model. In 
absence of the shares of the Company being listed at the time of the grant the Company has estimated the volatility based on the 
historical market volatility. The various assumptions considered in the pricing model for the aforementioned ESOP’s granted are:

2010
Dividend yield 0.4% - 1.5%
Expected volatility 16.29% - 46.69%
Risk free interest rate 6.50% - 7.75%
Expected life of the option 3.19 – 9 years
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 Impact of fair value method on net profit and earnings per share

 Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans outstanding been determined based on the fair value approach, the 
Company’s net profit and earnings per share would have reduced to the pro-forma amounts as indicated below :

2010
Net Profit (as reported) 2,291.60
Less: Impact of incremental cost under fair value approach 116.10
Net Profit: (pro-forma) 2,175.50

Basic earnings per share (as reported) (In Rupees) 30.56
Basic earnings per share (pro-forma) (In Rupees) 29.01
Diluted earnings per share (as reported) (In Rupees) 29.37
Diluted earnings per share (pro-forma) (In Rupees) 27.89

25.10 Provisions

Nature of Liability Provision as on 
1 April 2009

Addition Amount used Unused amount 
reversed

Provision as on 
31 March 2010

Claims and rebates (#) 6.11  –  – 6.11  – 

 (#) During the financial year 2005-06, Edelweiss Securities Limited had received claims from certain Beneficial Owners (‘BO’) on 
account of transactions in Depository accounts at its branch through counterfeit signatures by the remisiers on Delivery Instructions 
Slips. In respect of any other future claims by BOs, a prudential provision of Rs. 6.11 million had been made during the financial year 
2005-06 by the management. The same has been reversed during the year as it not required any further

25.11 Capital commitment

 Capital commitments (net of advances) – Rs.1,871.93 million (Previous year Rs. 316.28 million), out of which capital commitments to 
the tune of Rs. 1,640 million (Previous Year Rs. Nil) are subject to regulatory approvals.

25.12 Contingent liability

 (i) Edelweiss Capital Limited

   a) Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending – Rs.8.72 million (Previous year: Rs. 2.06 million). The demand paid 
under protest in respect of disputed taxation matters pertaining to open assessments of earlier years is Rs. 1.75 million (Previous 
year: Rs. 1.75 million).

   b) The Company has issued corporate guarantees to the extent of Rs. 3,800 million (Previous year: Rs. 6,188.30 million), in favour 
of banks to secure the credit facilities sanctioned by these banks to Edelweiss Securities Limited, EC Commodity Limited, 
Edelweiss Broking Limited and Edelweiss Commodities Limited (subsidiary companies).

   c) The Company has issued also corporate guarantees to the extent of Rs. 2,500 million in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services 
Limited for non-convertible debentures issued by ECL Finance Limited against due discharge of debt.

   d) Fixed deposits of Rs. 300 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) is marked as lien in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for 
non-convertible debentures issued by the Company.

 (ii)  Edelweiss Securities Limited (ESL)

   a) ESL has provided bank guarantees aggregating to Rs. 150 million (Previous year: Rs. 3,807 million), also included in paragraph 
25.12 (i)(b), as on 31 March 2010 for the following purposes to:

    1. The National Stock Exchange of India Limited - Rs. 150 million (Previous year: Rs. 3,504.50 million) and Rs. Nil (Previous 
year: Rs. 2.50 million) for meeting margin requirements and towards security deposit respectively.

    2. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited - Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 300 million) for meeting margin requirements.

    ESL has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating of Rs. 75 million (Previous year: Rs. 1,903.50 million) for obtaining the 
above bank guarantees.

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.9 Employee stock option plans (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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  b) Fixed deposits have also been pledged with:

    1. OTCEI Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 0.30 million) for meeting base capital requirements.

    2. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited Rs. 207.45 million (Previous year: Rs. 52.50 million) for meeting base capital 
requirements.

    3. National Stock Exchange of India Limited Rs. 4,479.50 million (Previous year: Rs. 6,457.80 million) for meeting base capital 
requirements.

    4. MCX Stock Exchange Limited Rs. 101.70 million (Previous year: Rs.42.50 million) for meeting base capital requirements.

    5. Canara Bank amounting to Rs. 548.50 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for availing secured bank overdraft.

    6. Citibank amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.50 million) for availing secured bank overdraft.

    7. HDFC Bank amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.1,013.90 million) for availing secured bank overdraft.

    8. Federal Bank amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.550 million) for availing secured bank overdraft.

  c) Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending – Rs. 36.27 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

 (iii) Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

  Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending – Rs. 7.45 million (Previous year: Rs. 0.99 million). The demand paid under 
protest in respect of disputed taxation matters pertaining to open assessments of earlier years is Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 0.18 
million).

 (iv) Edelweiss Commodities Limited (E Comm)

   a) E Comm has provided bank guarantee aggregating to Rs. 10 million (Previous year: Rs. 100 million), also included in paragraph 
25.12 (i)(b), as on 31 March 2010 to The Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements.

    E Comm has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. 5 million (Previous year: Rs. 50 million) for obtaining the above 
bank guarantee.

   b) E Comm has provided stand-by letter of credit aggregating to Rs. 1,750 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil), also included in 
paragraph 25.12 (i)(b), as on 31 March 2010 to The State Trading Corporation of India Limited for meeting margin requirements 
for buying bullion.

    E Comm has provided stand-by letter of credit aggregating to Rs. 250 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil), also included in paragraph 
25.12 (i)(b), as on 31 March 2010 to The Bank of Nova Scotia for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion.

    E Comm has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. 512.50 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for obtaining the above 
stand-by letter of credit.

   c) Fixed deposits have also been pledged with:

    1. The Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited Rs. 1,334 million (Previous year: Rs. 739.70 million) for meeting margin 
requirements.

    2. The National Commodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited Rs. 42.10 million (Previous year: Rs. 20 million) for meeting 
margin requirements.

    3. The National Spot Exchange Limited Rs. 4.25 million (Previous year: Rs. 1.25 million) for meeting base capital 
requirements.

    4. The Indian Commodity Exchange Limited Rs. 49.50 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for meeting base capital requirements.

    5. Axis Bank Rs. 861.30 million (Previous year: Rs. 800 million) for meeting margin requirements for forward contracts entered 
with the bank and for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion.

    6. Kotak Mahindra Bank Rs. 198.90 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for meeting margin requirements for forward contracts 
entered with the bank and for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion.

    7. HDFC Bank Rs. 633.60 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion.

    8. ICICI Bank Rs. 178.20 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for meeting margin requirements for buying bullion.

    9. Agriculture Produce Market Committee Indore Rs. 0.30 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) for mandi license.

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.12 Contingent liability (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (v) ECL Finance Limited 

  Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending – Rs. 0.69 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil). The demand paid under protest 
in respect of disputed taxation matters pertaining to open assessments of earlier years is Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

 (vi) Edelweiss Broking Limited (EBL)

   1. EBL has provided bank guarantees to The National Stock Exchange of India Limited – Rs. Nil. (Previous year: Rs.100 million), 
also included in paragraph 25.12 (i)(b), as on 31 March 2010 for the meeting additional base capital requirements.

    EBL has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating to Rs. Nil. (Previous year: Rs.50 million) for obtaining the above bank 
guarantees.

  2. Fixed deposits have also been pledged with:

    a. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited Rs.10.90 million (Previous year: Rs.10.50 million) for meeting base and additional base 
capital requirements.

    b. National Stock Exchange of India Limited Rs. 76.80 million (Previous year: Rs.10 million) for meeting base capital 
requirements.

 (vii) Edel Commodities Limited (Edel Comm)

  Edel Comm has placed fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.48.50 million) as margin towards Letter of 
Credit opened by bank for import of Zinc Ingots.

 (viii) EC Commodity Limited (EC Comm)

   a. EC Comm has provided bank guarantee aggregating Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 3.25 million), also included in paragraph 25.12 
(i)(b), as at 31 March 2010 to The Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements.

    EC Comm has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs.1.63 million) for obtaining the above 
bank guarantee.

   b. EC Comm has also pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. 82.45 million (Previous year: Rs.53.25 million) with The 
Multi Commodity Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements.

   c. EC Comm has also pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. 0.08 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) with Sales Tax 
Authorities for meeting deposit requirements.

 (ix) ECap Equities Limited (ECap)

  ECap has pledged fixed deposit with bank amounting to Rs. 0.08 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) with Sales Tax Authorities for 
meeting deposit requirements.

25.13  In accordance with the accounting policy set out on paragraph 1.17 of significant accounting policies, general loan loss provision, 
created in the books as at 31 March 2010, is Rs. 93.16 million (Previous year: Rs. 58.20 million). Further provision towards non-
performing assets created in the books as at 31 March 2010, is Rs. 22.53 million (Previous year: Rs. 14.10 million).

25.14 Prior period comparatives

 Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rashesh Shah Venkat Ramaswamy B Renganathan
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director V. P. & Company Secretary

 Mumbai | 21 May 2010

25. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (Continued)
25.12 Contingent liability (Continued)

Schedules to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Auditors’ Report to Standalone Financial Statements

To the Members of
Edelweiss Capital Limited 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Edelweiss Capital Limited (‘the Company’) as at 31 March 2010, the profit and loss 
account and the cash flow statement for the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 and amendments thereto (together referred to as ‘the Order’) issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), we enclose in the 
Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above, we report that:

 (a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination 
of those books;

 (c) The balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account;

 (d) In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit and loss account and cash flow statement comply with the accounting standards referred 
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act;

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as at 31 March 2010, and taken on record by 
the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors are disqualified as on 31 March 2010 from being appointed as director 
in terms of clause (g) of sub section (1) of section 274 to the Act; and 

 (f) In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the said financial statements, give 
the information required by the Act, 1956 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India:

   (i) in the case of the balance sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2010;

   (ii) in the case of the profit and loss account, of the profit of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010; and

   (iii) in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010.

For B S R & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Akeel Master
Mumbai Partner
21 May 2010 Membership No.: 046768



118 Standalone Financial Statements

Annexure to Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2010

(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

 (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased 
manner over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size 
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) Fixed assets disposed off during the year were not substantial, and therefore, do not affect the going concern assumption.

(ii) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 4(ii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(iii) (a) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its subsidiary companies which are covered in the register maintained under section 
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. The maximum amount outstanding during the year was Rs 457.36 lakhs and the year-end balance 
of such loans was Rs 321.09 lakhs.

 (b) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which loans have been granted to the companies listed in the 
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 

 (c) In case of loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under section 301, which are repayable on demand, the 
borrowers have been regular in repaying the interest as stipulated.

 (d) The loans granted to the companies listed in the register maintained under section 301 are repayable on demand. Accordingly, 
there is no overdue amount of more than Rs 1 lakh in respect of loans granted to any of the companies, firms or other parties listed 
in the register maintained under section 301.

 (e) The Company has not taken any loans from companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 301 
of the Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there is an adequate internal control system commensurate 
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of fixed assets and with regard to sale of services. In 
our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in 
internal control system. 

(v) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred 
to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 have been entered in the register required to be maintained under that section.

 (b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts 
and arrangements referred to in (a) above and exceeding the value of Rs 5 lakhs with any party during the year have been made at 
prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

(vi) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. 

(vii) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(viii) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 for any 
of the activities conducted by the Company.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-tax, 
Service tax and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the 
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance, Sales-
tax, Wealth-tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and Investor Education and Protection fund. 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-
tax, Service tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2010 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, other than those stated in Appendix I to this report there are no dues 
of Income-tax, Provident Fund, Wealth tax, Service tax and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited with the 
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

 (d) There were no dues on account of cess under Section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956 since the date from which the aforesaid 
section comes into force has not yet been made effective by the Central Government. 
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(x) The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses in the financial 
year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its 
bankers or debenture holders.

(xii) The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other 
securities.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a chit fund, nidhi or mutual benefit fund/
society.

(xiv) The Company has maintained proper records of the transactions and contracts in respect of dealing in securities and timely entries have 
been made therein. Further, such securities and investments have been held by the Company in its own name except to the extent of 
exemption granted under section 49 of the Companies Act 1956. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions on which the Company has given 
guarantees for loans taken by others from banks are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(xvi) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.

(xvii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we are of the 
opinion that the funds raised on short term basis have not been used for long term investments.

(xviii) The Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares to companies/firms/parties covered in the register maintained under 
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has created security or charge in respect of debentures issued 
during the year. The Company is not required to create any charge on outstanding unsecured debentures.

(xx) The Company has not raised any money by public issues during the year.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.

For B S R & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Akeel Master
Mumbai Partner
21 May 2010 Membership No.: 046768

Appendix I

Details of statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute 

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (in Rs.) Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 6,779,144 A.Y 2007-08 CIT(A)

Annexure to Auditors’ Report – 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2010

As per our report attached.
For B S R & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

B Renganathan

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director

V. P. & Company Secretary

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai | 21 May 2010

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) Schedule 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' funds

Share capital 3  375.36  374.67 
Share application money  0.04  – 
Stock options outstanding account  18.91  12.79 
Reserves and surplus 4  12,707.01  13,173.59 

 13,101.32  13,561.05 
Loan funds

Secured loans 5  4,718.51  1,084.59 
Unsecured loans 6  9,815.55  4,007.23 

TOTAL  27,635.38  18,652.87 

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed assets 7

Gross block  97.51  103.12 
Less: Accumulated depreciation  66.48  57.06 
Net block  31.03  46.06 
Capital work-in-progress  –  17.44 

 31.03  63.50 

Investments 8  11,536.05  12,497.26 

Deferred tax asset 21.4  67.37  83.68 

Current assets, loans and advances
Sundry debtors 9  583.85  44.08 
Cash and bank balances 10  314.35  219.04 
Loans and advances 11  16,896.54  6,481.31 

 17,794.74  6,744.43
Less: Current liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities 12  986.75  342.19
Provisions 13  807.06  393.81 

 1,793.81  736.00 

Net current assets  16,000.93  6,008.43 

TOTAL  27,635.38  18,652.87 

Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the accounts 21
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the balance sheet.
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 March 2010

As per our report attached.
For B S R & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

B Renganathan

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director

V. P. & Company Secretary

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai | 21 May 2010

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) Schedule 31 March 2010 31 March 2009
INCOME

Fee income 14  1,282.06  240.79 
Income from investments and dividend 15  370.57  350.77 
Interest income 16  788.58  1,322.33 
Other income 17  14.05  3.49 

 2,455.26  1,917.38 

EXPENDITURE
Employee costs 18  281.44  283.69 
Operating and other expenses 19  361.48  300.91 
Financial expenses 20  1,372.21  978.19 
Depreciation  16.68  43.77

 2,031.81  1,606.56

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION  423.45  310.82 
Provision for taxation
- Income tax (includes short provision for earlier years of Rs. 4.61 million;  65.10  118.75 
 Previous year: Rs. 65.05 million)
- Deferred tax charge/(benefit)  16.31  (75.19)
- Fringe benefit tax  –  3.55 

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION  342.04  263.71 

BALANCE IN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT BROUGHT FORWARD  550.90  553.56 

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT BALANCE AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION  892.94  817.27 

APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed dividend  600.73  224.80 
Interim dividend  150.09  0.25 
Dividend distribution tax (includes write back of Rs. 12.16 million; 
Previous year Rs. Nil)

 65.16  12.22 

Transfer to general reserve  34.20  26.50 
Transfer to capital redemption reserve  –  2.60 
Profit and loss account balance carried to balance sheet  42.76  550.90 

 892.94  817.27 

Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (Face value Rs. 5 each) 21.3 4.56 3.52 
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (Face value Rs. 5 each) 21.3 4.38 3.43 

Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the accounts 21
The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit and loss account.
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 31 March 2010 31 March 2009

A Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit before taxation  423.45  310.82 

Adjustments for 
Depreciation  16.68  43.77 
Profit on sale of investments (net)  (162.78)  (107.53)
Profit on sale of fixed assets  (13.97)  (1.35)
Interest income  (788.58)  (1,351.30)
Financial expenses  1,372.05  976.35 
Dividend income (207.79)  (214.26)
Write back of provision for diminution in long term investments  –  (1.00)
Provision for diminution in long term investments  20.69  18.30 
Bad debts written off  19.49  3.18 
Provision for doubtful debts  (37.64)  35.86 
ESOP compensation cost  7.63  6.80 
Provision for doubtful advances written back  –  (0.32)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 649.23  (280.68)

Adjustments for 
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances  (1,590.62)  15.80 
Increase in sundry debtors  (521.64)  (1.95)
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities and provisions  67.50  (175.77)
Cash used in operations  (1,395.53)  (442.60)

Income taxes paid  113.15  118.47 

Net cash used in operating activities – A  (1,508.68)  (561.07)

B Cash flow from investing activities 
Purchase of fixed assets  (1.67)  (17.66)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets  31.43  4.53 
Decrease in current investments  136.43  2,292.50 
Purchase of long term investments  (1,056.25)  (4,108.19)
Redemption/sale of long term investments  2,023.12  1.00 
Dividend received 360.79  61.26 
Interest income on fixed deposits  5.43  113.66 

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities – B 1,499.28  (1,652.90)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2010
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 31 March 2010 31 March 2009

C Cash flow from financing activities 
Share application money received  0.04  – 
Proceeds from issue of share capital including securities premium  6.53  26.84 
Repayment on redemption of preference share  –  (2.60)
Borrowed through secured loans  4,210.42  5,581.18 
Repayment of secured loans  (562.50)  (5,767.75)
Borrowed through unsecured loans  424,425.21  326,604.73 
Repayment of unsecured loans  (418,630.89)  (332,355.62)
Dividend paid  (374.89)  (150.43)
Dividend distribution tax paid  (2.46)  (25.57)
(Increase)/decrease in loan to subsidiary companies (Refer Note 2)  (8,917.47)  7,061.30 
Interest income from subsidiary companies  749.23  1,234.10 
Interest income others  21.83 –
Financial expenses  (820.34)  (919.45)
 
Net cash generated from financing activities – C 104.71  1,286.73 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 95.31  (927.24)

Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year  219.04  1,146.28 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note 1)  314.35  219.04 

Note: 1 Cash and cash equivalents represent cash, balances with banks in current account and fixed deposits placed with banks 
(Refer schedule 10 to the financial statements). 

 2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions. 

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)

As per our report attached.
For B S R & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 116231W

Rashesh Shah

Venkat Ramaswamy

B Renganathan

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-time Director

V. P. & Company Secretary

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No.: 046768

Mumbai | 21 May 2010
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1 BACKGROUND

 Edelweiss Capital Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated as a public limited company on 21 November 1995 and is the ultimate 
holding company of Edelweiss group of entities. The Company is registered as a Merchant Banker and Portfolio Management Advisor 
with the Securities & Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’). The Company is principally engaged in providing investment banking services 
and fund management activities for Edelweiss group entities.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

 The accompanying financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting 
and comply with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and the relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable. The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees in millions.

2.2 Use of estimates

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles requires the management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of 
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

2.3 Revenue recognition

 a) Investment banking fee income is recognised, on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into 
between the Company and the counterparty.

 b) Interest income is recognised on accrual basis.

 c) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

 d) Profit earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/loss on sale of investments is determined based on 
the weighted average cost of the investments sold.

 e) The rating support fee for the borrowing programme of the subsidiaries is accrued on straight line basis over the rating period and 
as per the contractual terms agreed with the subsidiaries.

 f) Portfolio management fees are accounted on accrual basis as follows:

   i) In case of percentage based fees, as a percentage of the unaudited net asset value at the end of each financial quarter, on a 
quarterly basis.

   ii) In case of return based fee, as a percentage of the annual profit, on an annual basis.

2.4 Benchmark linked debentures

 The Company has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices over 
the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at year end. The 
unrealised loss on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the profit and loss account and unrealised gain, if 
any is ignored. The resultant debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis. 

2.5 Fixed assets and depreciation

 Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises purchase price and any attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

 Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready to use or put to use, whichever is earlier. In 
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal. 

 Depreciation is charged at the rates prescribed in the Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 as given below:

Class of asset Rate of depreciation
Flat 5.00%
Office equipments 13.91%
Computers 40.00%
Furniture and fixtures 18.10%
Vehicles 25.89% 

 Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the period of lease, 
whichever is shorter. 

 All fixed assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 Software expense includes expenditure on licences for various office applications which are written off in the year of purchase on a 
prudent basis.

2.6 Impairment of assets 

 The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal/
external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount 
of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, is less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. 

 The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the profit and loss account. If at the balance sheet date, there is an 
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected 
at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

2.7 Investments

 Investments are classified into long term investments and current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for one year 
or more are classified as long term investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are classified as 
current investments. 

 Long term investments are carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than temporary, determined separately for each 
investment. 

 Current investments are carried at lower of cost or fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each 
investment. In case of investments in mutual funds, the net asset value of units declared by the mutual funds is considered as the fair 
value. 

2.8 Foreign currency transactions

 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences, if 
any arising out of transactions settled during the year are recognised in the profit and loss account. 

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated at the closing exchange 
rates on that date. The exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the profit and loss account and related assets and liabilities are 
accordingly restated in the balance sheet.

2.9 Employee benefits

 Provident fund

 The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for 
on an accrual basis and recognised in the profit and loss account.

 Gratuity

 The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit is calculated 
by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, 
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

 The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method which recognises each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each 
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

 The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present 
value are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date.

 Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

2.10 Taxation

 Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), 
deferred tax charge or benefit (reflecting the tax effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the 
period) and fringe benefit tax. 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 Current tax

 Provision for current tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after adjusting for allowances, disallowances and 
exemptions in accordance with the tax laws applicable.

 Deferred taxation

 The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognised using the tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is 
reasonable certainty that the asset can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss 
under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of the assets. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually certain (as 
the case may be) to be realised. 

 Fringe benefit tax

 For the previous year, provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (‘FBT’) is made on the basis of applicable FBT on the taxable value of chargeable 
expenditure of the Company as prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the same has been included in the provision for income 
tax. 

2.11 Operating leases

 Lease payments for assets taken on operating lease are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term.

2.12 Earnings per share

 The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - Earnings Per Share prescribed 
by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax 
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were 
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average 
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

2.13 Employee stock option plans

 The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for compensation cost of its stock based employee compensation plans. 
The compensation cost is amortised on a straight-line basis.

2.14 Provisions and contingences

 The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of 
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible 
obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made.

 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that the 
outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

 Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is 
virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change 
occurs. 

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.10 Taxation (Continued)
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Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
3 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
100,000,000 (Previous year: 100,000,000) Equity shares of Rs. 5 (Previous year: Rs. 5) each  500.00  500.00 
4,000,000 (Previous year: 4,000,000) Preference shares of Rs. 5 (Previous year: Rs. 5) each  20.00  20.00 

 520.00  520.00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 

75,071,893 (Previous year: 74,933,155) Equity shares of Rs. 5 
(Previous year: Rs. 5) each, fully paid-up

 375.36  374.67 

 375.36  374.67 
Bonus:
(a) Of the above, 44,916,806 equity shares of Re. 1 each (before consolidation of face value 

of equity share from Re. 1 per share to Rs. 5 per share) have been allotted as fully 
paid up bonus shares by capitalisation of Rs. 44.92 million from securities premium 
account.

(b) Of the above, 35,937,448 equity shares of Rs. 5 each have been allotted as fully paid up 
bonus shares by capitalisation of Rs. 179.69 million from securities premium account.

4 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Securities premium account
 Opening balance  12,504.58  12,477.74 
 Add: Additions during the year  7.36  26.84 

 12,511.94  12,504.58 
Capital redemption reserve
 Opening balance  2.60  – 
 Add: Additions during the year  –  2.60 

 2.60  2.60 
General reserve
 Opening balance  115.51  89.01 
 Add: Additions during the year  34.20  26.50 

 149.71  115.51 

Balance in profit and loss account  42.76  550.90 

 12,707.01  13,173.59 
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Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
5 SECURED LOANS

Non-convertible debentures (Refer schedule 21.14)
(a) Secured by way of fixed charge on immovable property and floating 

charge on sundry debtors, cash and bank balances and loans and 
advances 1,787.30 1,070.60

(b) Secured by way of second charge on immovable property and 
floating charge on loans to subsidiary companies 2,930.00  – 

4,717.30 1,070.60

Vehicles loan  1.21  1.61 
(Secured by hypothecation of vehicles)

Housing loan  –  12.38 
(Secured by hypothecation of the flat under construction)

 4,718.51  1,084.59 

6 UNSECURED LOANS

Fully convertible debentures  1,800.00  1,800.00 
Non-convertible debentures  2,840.00  – 
Inter corporate deposits  –  20.00 

Commercial paper  5,250.00  2,250.00 
Less: Unamortised discount  74.45  62.77 

 5,175.55  2,187.23 

 9,815.55  4,007.23 
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Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
8 INVESTMENTS

Long term investments 
I. Quoted 
 (a) Equity shares *  0.00  0.00 

II. Unquoted 
 (a) Equity shares 
  (i) In subsidiaries  10,268.24  9,407.09 
  (ii) In associates  0.60  0.60 
  (iii) Others 284.34  245.34

10,553.18  9,653.03 
 (b) Preference shares 
  (i) In subsidiaries  700.00  1,550.00 

 (c) Debentures and bonds 
  (i) In subsidiaries  –  1,020.90 

 (d) Units of venture capital funds  274.64  270.76 

 (e) Others 36.60 36.60

 11,564.42  12,531.29 

 Less: Diminution in value of unquoted long term investments  54.72  34.03 
 11,509.70  12,497.26 

Total long term investments  11,509.70  12,497.26 

Current investments 
I. Unquoted 
 (a) Units of mutual funds  26.35  – 

Total current investments  26.35  – 

Total investments  11,536.05  12,497.26 

Aggregate of quoted investments 
– At book value *  0.00  0.00 
– At market value *  0.00  0.00 

Aggregate of unquoted long term investments
– At book value  11,509.70  12,497.26 

Aggregate of unquoted current investments
– At book value  26.35  – 

* Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 million 

Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
9 SUNDRY DEBTORS

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months
 (a) Considered good  21.70  7.29 
 (b) Considered doubtful  3.49  43.84 
Other debts
 (a) Considered good  562.15  36.79 
 (b) Considered doubtful  –  1.83 

 587.34  89.75 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  3.49  45.67 

 583.85  44.08 

10 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  0.07  0.32 
Cheques in hand  0.10  181.78 
Balances with scheduled banks
 – in current accounts  11.58  1.84 
 – in fixed deposits  302.60  35.10 
(Refer schedule 21.13) 

 314.35  219.04 

11 LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(Refer schedule 21.16)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received
 (a) Subsidiaries  674.62  226.10 
 (b) Others  1,724.98  609.38 
Accrued interest on fixed deposits  19.34  2.44 
Accrued interest on loans  1.34  6.15
Loans to subsidiary companies  14,182.25  5,264.78 
(includes interest accrued Rs. 379.91 million; Previous year: Rs. 1,027.29 million)
Deposits  27.33  153.82 
Advance tax and tax deducted at source  266.68  218.64 
(net of provision for taxation of Rs. 485.03 million; Previous year: Rs. 419.89 million)

 16,896.54  6,481.31
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Schedules to the financial statements
as at 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
12 CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Sundry creditors 
(Refer schedule 21.15)
 (a) Subsidiaries  –  0.19 
 (b) Others  254.66  209.80

254.66  209.99
Book overdraft  2.18  1.77 
Income received in advance  15.00  – 
Interest accrued but not due  651.81  100.10 
Other liabilities  63.10  30.33 

 986.75  342.19
13 PROVISIONS

Gratuity  11.36  9.12 
Provision for deferred bonus  120.11  147.71 
Proposed dividend  600.73  224.80 
Dividend distribution tax  74.86  12.18 

 807.06  393.81 
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Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
14 FEE INCOME

Investment banking fees  685.04  195.13 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 39.87 million; Previous year: Rs. 12.41 million) 
Advisory fees  201.26  18.91 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 20.35 million; Previous year: Rs. 2.52 million) 
Rating support fees and other fees  395.76  26.75 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 9.71 million; Previous year: Rs. 2.88 million) 

 1,282.06  240.79 

15 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS AND DIVIDEND 

Profit on sale of current investments (net)  162.19  107.53 
Gain on structured products  –  28.97 
Profit on sale of long term investments  0.59  – 
Dividend on current investments  –  61.24 
Dividend on long term investments   
– Subsidiaries 207.76 153.00
– Others 0.03 0.03

 370.57  350.77 

16 INTEREST INCOME

On loan to subsidiary companies  729.23  1,074.76 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 10.90 million; Previous year: Rs. 15.84 million) 
On fixed deposits  22.33  114.91
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 2.31 million; Previous year: 13.45 million) 
On debentures of subsidiary company  20.00  130.37 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 4.53 million; Previous year: Rs. 29.54 million) 
Others  17.02  2.29 
(Tax deducted at source Rs. 3.54 million; Previous year: Rs.0.10 million) 

 788.58  1,322.33 

17 OTHER INCOME

Diminution in value of long term investments written back  –  1.00 
Provision for doubtful advances written back and bad debts recovered  –  0.32 
Profit on sale of fixed assets  13.88  0.06 
Foreign exchange gain  –  0.82 
Miscellaneous income  0.17  1.29 

 14.05  3.49 

18 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and bonus #  273.41  271.27 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  3.61  4.02 
Gratuity  2.47  3.04 
Staff welfare  1.95  5.36 

 281.44  283.69 
# Refer schedule 21.17
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31 March 2010 31 March 2009
19 OPERATING EXPENSES

Advertisement, publicity and business promotion #  32.20  15.73 
Auditors' remuneration (Refer schedule 21.10)  2.71  2.84 
Bad debts written off 19.49 3.18
Commission to non-executive directors 3.50 2.50
Commission and brokerage  9.62  0.43 
Communication  9.86  11.63 
Computer software and website development charges  11.74  9.15 
Custodian charges  1.39  0.60 
Dematerialisation charges  0.55  0.85 
Directors' sitting fees  0.87  0.72 
Donation  –  0.19 
Electricity #  12.55  4.52 
Foreign exchange loss (net)  99.33  – 
Insurance  3.29  3.53 
Legal and professional fees  58.23  55.52 
Membership and subscription  10.27  11.32 
Office expense  6.13  16.40 
Postage and courier  4.33  6.35 
Printing and stationery #  13.48  13.55 
Provision for diminution in value of long term investments  20.69  18.30 
Provision for doubtful debts  (37.64)  35.86 
Rates and taxes  12.46  6.30 
Rent #  18.01  36.93 
Repairs and maintenance - others  3.26  7.65 
Securities transaction tax  0.07  – 
Seminars and conference  8.02  0.74 
Travelling and conveyance  34.32  35.16 
Wealth tax  0.03  0.03 
Miscellaneous expenses 2.72 0.93

 361.48  300.91 

20 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest on
– Debentures 1,069.71 553.43
– Inter-corporate deposits  0.27  5.36 
– Expenses on debenture redemption  –  28.97 
– Bank overdraft  0.60  3.58 
– Vehicle loan  0.15  0.27 
Discount on commercial paper  281.94  384.73 
Financial charges  19.38  0.40 
Bank charges  0.16  1.45

 1,372.21 978.19 
 # Refer schedule 21.17 

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

21.1 Segment reporting

 The Company’s business is organised and management reviews the performance, based on the business segments as mentioned 
below:

Segment Activities covered
Agency business Advisory and transactional services 
Holding company activities Group’s fund management

 Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identifiable with 
individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis.

 Based on such allocations, segmental balance sheet as at 31 March 2010 and segmental profit & loss account for the year ended 
31 March 2010 have been prepared.

 Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the 
domestic segment. 
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Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (A) Subsidiaries which are controlled by the Company and with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
  Edelweiss Securities Limited 
  Edelweiss Commodities Limited 
  Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited
  Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 
  Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC
  Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited
  ECL Finance Limited
  Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 
  Edelcap Securities Limited
  ECap Equities Limited
  EC Commodity Limited 
  Edel Commodities Limited 
  Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited
  Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited
  Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
  Edelweiss Broking Limited
  Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited
  Edel Land Limited
  Edelweiss Capital Services Limited 
  EC International Limited, Mauritius
  Edelgive Foundation
  Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
  Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
  Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 
  Edel Investments Limited 
  Allium Finance Private Limited (w.e.f. 15 June 2009)
  (through Edelweiss Commodities Limited)
  Arum Investments Private Limited (w.e.f.15 June 2009)
  (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)
  Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited
  Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (upto 12 December 2008)

 (B) Enterprise over which significant influence is exercised:

  Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust

 (C) Subsidiaries which are controlled by the Company and with whom no transactions have taken place during the year:
  EC Global Limited (through Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)
  Aster Commodities DMCC 
  (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)
  ECap International Limited (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)
  Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited 
  (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)
  Edelweiss Securities (Singapore) Pte. Limited
  (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)
  Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Limited
  (through Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited)
  EAAA LLC Mauritius (through EC International Limited, Mauritius)
  EW Special Opportunities Advisors LLC (through EAAA LLC, Mauritius)
  EW India Special Assets Advisors LLC (through EAAA LLC, Mauritius)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (C0NTINUED)

21.2 Related parties 
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 (D) Associates:

  Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (w.e.f. 13 December 2008)
  (through Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited)
  Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited 
  Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited
  Blue River Capital Management Company I, LLC (through EC Global Limited)
  Dahlia Financial Services Private Limited (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)
  Magnolia Financial Services Private Limited (through Edelweiss Securities Limited)

 (E) Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them control or significant 
influence over the Company:

  Rashesh Shah
  Venkat Ramaswamy

 (F) Relatives of individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them control 
or significant influence over the Company: 

  Vidya Shah
  Aparna T. C.
  Kaavya Venkat
  Shilpa Mody
  Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah
  A V Ramaswamy

 (G) Enterprise which exercise significant influence over the company:
  Oak Holdings Private Limited

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Capital account transactions
Investments in Equity shares 

ECL Finance Limited  – 
 (2,267.72)

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  – 
 (700.00)

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  – 
 (880.00)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  – 
 (35.63)

Edelweiss Broking Limited  90.80 
 (30.00)

EC Commodity Limited  201.00 
 (10.00)

Edel Commodities Limited  – 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  – 
 (110.80)

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited  25.00 
 (0.50)

Edelgive Foundation  – 
 (0.10)

Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  – 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited  – 
 (0.15)

Edel Land Limited  – 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited  517.00 
 (0.50)

EC International Limited  5.00 
 (1.20)

Edel Investments Limited  21.00 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  1.35 
 (–) 

Investments in Preference shares 
Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  70.00 

 (–) 
Edel Land Limited  80.00 

 (–) 

Equity shares sold
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  – 

 (0.50)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Redemption of Optionally fully convertible debentures 
ECL Finance Limited  1,020.90 

 (–) 

Redemption of Preference shares 
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  1,000.00 

 (–) 

Non-convertible debentures subscribed
Oak Holdings Private Limited  20.00 

 (29.50)
Aparna T. C.  – 

 (5.00)
Kaavya Venkat  – 

 (4.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  – 

 (4.00)

Preference shares of the company redeemed
Rashesh Shah  – 

 (2.60)

Non-convertible debentures redeemed
ECap Equities Limited  349.50 

 (–) 

Share application money paid
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  278.85 

 (–) 

Current account transactions
Loans repaid by

Edelweiss Securities Limited  128,392.51 
 (115,267.50)

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  44.20 
 (40.80)

Edelweiss Commodities Limited  60,025.61 
 (35,758.25)

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  13,335.09 
 (34,050.51)

ECL Finance Limited  33,165.81 
 (17,059.38)

ECap Equities Limited  21,178.97 
 (9,163.98)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 



141Standalone Financial Statements

EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelcap Securities Limited  17,948.96 
 (15,406.84)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  1,973.34 
 (610.27)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  21.82 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  17.36 
 (16.10)

Edelweiss Broking Limited  3,309.35 
 (0.52)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.19 
 (0.97)

Edel Commodities Limited  1,358.61 
 (1.39)

EC Commodity Limited  12,167.90 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  12.65 
 (–) 

Edel Land Limited  2.60 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  8.00 
 (–) 

EC International Limited  750.32 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  8.60 
 (15.61)

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited  2.14 
 (0.57)

Loan given to
Edelweiss Securities Limited  130,556.81 

 (114,845.16)
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  38.25 

 (60.23)
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  64,349.70 

 (34,654.45)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  13,311.10 

 (30,942.34)
ECL Finance Limited  33,561.10 

 (15,775.18)
ECap Equities Limited  21,578.35 

 (9,310.95)
Edelcap Securities Limited  19,114.35 

 (13,578.54)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  1,808.54 
 (757.16)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  21.28 
 (0.54)

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  8.00 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Broking Limited  3,557.23 
 (69.77)

Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  1,031.88 
 (201.65)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.68 
 (0.97)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  26.07 
 (18.75)

Edel Commodities Limited  1,371.59 
 (51.49)

EC Commodity Limited  11,946.30 
 (250.21)

Edel Land Limited  5.45 
 (–) 

EC International Limited 1,287.49
 (–) 

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  7.81 
 (7.17)

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited  2.14 
 (0.57)

Reimbursement recovered
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  67.87 

 (153.86)
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  192.41 

 (136.48)
ECap Equities Limited  65.24 

 (93.42)
ECL Finance Limited  310.73 

 (101.92)
Edelweiss Capital Services Limited  2.77 

 (3.80)
Edelcap Securities Limited  140.71 

 (112.56)
Edelweiss Securities Limited  27.29 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  8.48 

 (10.18)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  0.18 
 (0.05)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  104.33 
 (41.40)

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  10.17 
 (4.77)

Edelweiss Broking Limited  5.58 
 (0.23)

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  9.21 
 (2.76)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.75 
 (0.65)

Allium Financial Services Private Limited  0.46 
 (–) 

Arum Investments Private Limited  0.51 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited  0.14 
 (0.03)

Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  0.07 
 (0.00)*

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited  0.01 
 (0.00)*

EC Commodity Limited  1.29 
 (0.26)

Edel Land Limited  0.08 
 (–) 

Edel Investments Limited  0.00*
 (–) 

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  0.00*
 (–) 

Edel Commodities Limited  1.16 
 (0.00)*

Oak Holdings Private Limited  0.02 
 (0.01)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  13.25 
 (3.33)

Edelgive Foundation  0.09 
 (0.04)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited  2.51 
 (0.81)

Dividend paid
Rashesh Shah  65.11 

 (21.73)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Venkat Ramaswamy  26.51 
 (10.61)

Aparna T. C.  6.00 
 (2.40)

Kaavya Venkat  6.00 
 (2.40)

Vidya Shah  15.18 
 (6.07)

A V Ramaswamy  0.03 
 (0.01)

Shilpa Mody  0.00*
 (0.00)*

Sharmishta Chandrakant Shah  0.01 
 (4.33)

Oak Holdings Private Limited  24.00 
 (14.40)

Remuneration
Rashesh Shah  20.57 

 (12.22)
Venkat Ramaswamy  15.97 

 (10.52)

Rent paid
Aparna T. C.  – 

 (0.68)
Vidya Shah  1.54 

 (4.41)

Dividend income
Edelweiss Securities Limited  72.16 

 (153.00)
Edelcap Securities Limited  135.60 

 (–) 

Interest income
Edelweiss Securities Limited  164.86 

 (249.04)
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  3.38 

 (3.91)
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  92.59 

 (174.31)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  125.68 

 (284.16)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

ECL Finance Limited  18.08 
 (116.35)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  18.01 
 (0.81)

ECap Equities Limited  45.33 
 (120.17)

Edelcap Securities Limited  166.68 
 (124.03)

Edelweiss Broking Limited  4.20 
 (0.68)

Edel Commodities Limited  6.20 
 (0.51)

EC Commodity Limited  8.67 
 (0.21)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  0.05 
 (0.04)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.00* 
 (0.01)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  0.09 
 (0.54)

Edel Land Limited  0.05 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  0.00*
 (–) 

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited  0.00*
 (–) 

EC International Limited  75.41 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.08 
 (0.29)

Loss on non-convertible debentures
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited –

(28.97)

Interest income from optionally fully convertible 
debentures

ECL Finance Limited  20.00 
 (130.37)

Advisory fee received
Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited  – 

 (3.00)
Edelweiss Securities Limited  8.00 

 (15.00)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

ECap Equities Limited  80.32 
 (–) 

ECL Finance Limited  12.00 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  84.10 
 (–) 

Rating fee received
ECL Finance Limited  163.77 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Securities Limited  195.15 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  22.24 

 (–) 

Primary market transactions
Interest expense on non-convertible debentures

Oak Holdings Private Limited  5.86 
 (0.20)

Aparna T. C.  1.26 
 (–) 

Kaavya Venkat  1.01 
 (–) 

Venkat Ramaswamy  1.01 
 (–) 

Ecap Equities Limited  37.40 
 (–) 

Reimbursements paid for common expenses
Rent

Edelweiss Securities Limited  6.48 
 (–) 

Reimbursements recovered for common expenses
Shared staff cost
Edelweiss Securities Limited  45.56 

 (60.00)
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  22.31 

 (5.00)
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  8.44

(10.00)
ECL Finance Limited  23.73 

 (20.00)

Rent
Edelweiss Securities Limited  23.76 

 (46.22)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 



147Standalone Financial Statements

EDELWEISS ANNUAL REPORT 2009-10

 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelweiss Commodities Limited  4.54 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  3.30 
 (–) 

ECL Finance Limited  – 
 (17.40)

Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited  – 
 (4.03)

Advertisement
Edelweiss Securities Limited  7.42 

 (11.00)
ECL Finance Limited  7.42 

 (5.00)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  7.42 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  4.92 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  4.92 

 (5.00)

Electricity
ECL Finance Limited  – 

 (6.00)
Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited  – 

 (0.53)

Printing and stationery
ECL Finance Limited  – 

 (1.20)

Incorporation expenses recovered
Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  – 

 (0.06)
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited  – 

 (1.86)
Edel Commodities Limited  – 

 (0.25)
Edel Land Limited  – 

 (0.26)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  15.49 

 (–) 
EC Commodity Limited  – 

 (0.26)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelgive Foundation  – 
 (0.21)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited  – 
 (0.81)

Edel Investments Limited  0.28 
 (–) 

Balances with related parties
Sundry creditors

ECL Finance Limited  – 
 (0.19)

Investments in Equity shares
Edelweiss Securities Limited  92.00 

 (92.00)
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  5.00 

 (5.00)
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  1,108.00 

 (1,108.00)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  1,772.27 

 (1,772.27)
Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC  2.39 

 (2.39)
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  0.50 

 (0.50)
Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited  0.10 

 (0.10)
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.50 

 (0.50)
ECL Finance Limited  5,190.56 

 (5,190.56)
ECap Equities Limited  10.00 

 (10.00)
Edelcap Securities Limited  10.00 

 (10.00)
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  1,000.00 

 (1,000.00)
Edelweiss Broking Limited  135.80 

 (45.00)
Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  45.62 

 (45.62)
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited  1.00 

 (1.00)
EC Commodity Limited  211.00 

 (10.00)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edel Commodities Limited  0.50 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  110.80 
 (110.80)

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited  25.50 
 (0.50)

Edelgive Foundation  0.10 
 (0.10)

Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  0.50 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited  0.15 
 (0.15)

Edel Land Limited  0.50 
 (0.50)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited  517.50 
 (0.50)

Edel Investments Limited  21.00 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  1.35 
 (–) 

EC International Limited  6.20 
 (1.20)

Investments in Preference shares
Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  70.00 

 (–) 
Edel Land Limited  80.00 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  – 

 (1,000.00)
Edelweiss Securities Limited  350.00 

 (350.00)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  200.00 

 (200.00)

Optionally fully convertible debentures 
ECL Finance Limited  – 

 (1,020.90)

Loans
Edelweiss Securities Limited  4,709.41 

 (2,545.12)
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  32.11 

 (38.06)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelweiss Commodities Limited  4,510.16 
 (186.07)

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  1,496.41 
 (1,520.40)

ECL Finance Limited  510.18 
 (114.89)

ECap Equities Limited  546.42 
 (147.03)

Edelcap Securities Limited  1,341.44 
 (176.05)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  – 
 (164.80)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  – 
 (0.54)

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  11.35 
 (2.65)

Edelweiss Broking Limited  317.15 
 (69.26)

Edel Commodities Limited  63.08 
 (50.10)

EC Commodity Limited  28.61 
 (250.21)

Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  – 
 (0.79)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  0.50 
 (0.01)

Edel Land Limited  2.85 
 (–) 

EC International Limited 537.17
 (–) 

Edelweiss Capital USA, LLC  – 
 (0.12)

Oak Holdings Private Limited  – 
 (0.21)

Non-convertible debentures outstanding
Oak Holdings Private Limited  22.50 

 (29.50)
Aparna T. C.  5.00 

 (5.00)
Kaavya Venkat  4.00 

 (4.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  4.00 

 (4.00)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Ecap Equities Limited  73.50 
 (–) 

Interest payable on non-convertible debentures
Oak Holdings Private Limited  6.06 

 (0.20)
Aparna T. C.  1.26 

 (–) 
Kaavya Venkat  1.01 

 (–) 
Venkat Ramaswamy  1.01 

 (–) 
Ecap Equities Limited  19.52 

 (–) 

Sundry debtors

ECL Finance Limited  91.27 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Securities Limited  195.15 
 (–) 

Edelweiss Commodities Limited  22.24 
 (–) 

Advances
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited  278.85 

 (–) 
Edelweiss Securities Limited  69.82 

 (179.41)
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited  3.28 

 (0.00)*
Edelweiss Commodities Limited  31.97 

 (5.10)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited  122.20 

 (23.66)
Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited  8.38 

 (4.98)
ECL Finance Limited  31.57 

 (–) 
ECap Equities Limited  – 

 (0.01)
Edelcap Securities Limited  131.77 

 (2.29)
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited  4.88 

 (0.16)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.2 Related parties (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars

Subsidiaries 
controlled 

by the 
Company 

 Enterprise 
over which 
significant 
influence is 
exercised 

 Associates  Individual 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Relatives 
of 

individuals 
exercising 
significant 

control 

 Enterprise 
which 

exercise 
significant 
influence 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited  – 
 (0.02)

Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited  – 
 (6.56)

Edelweiss Employee Welfare Trust  1,444.05 
 (424.82)

Blue River Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited  1.62 
 (3.31)

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited  – 
 (0.00)*

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited  0.26 
 (5.19)

Allium Finance Private Limited  0.00* 
 (–) 

EC International Limited 75.41
(–)

Edelgive Foundation  – 
 (0.21)

EC Commodity Limited  – 
 (0.26)

Edel Commodities Limited  – 
 (0.25)

Edel Land Limited  – 
 (0.26)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited  – 
 (0.81)

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited  – 
 (1.86)

Edelweiss Capital Services Limited  0.01 
 (0.00)*

Edelweiss Broking Limited  – 
 (0.01)

Edelweiss Property Advisors Limited  – 
 (0.06)

Bonus payable
Rashesh Shah  15.00 

 (13.00)
Venkat Ramaswamy  12.00 

 (11.70)
Amount in brackets represent previous year numbers
* Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 million

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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 In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 – Earnings Per Share prescribed by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the 
computation of earnings per share is set out below:

2010 2009

a) Shareholders earnings (as per profit and loss account) 342.04 263.71
Less: Preference dividend declared by the Company (including dividend distribution tax) – 0.30
Net profit available to equity shareholders for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted 
earnings per share 342.04 263.41

b) Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares of Rs. 5 each:
– Number of shares at the beginning of the year 74,933,155 74,933,155
– Number of shares issued during the year 138,738 –
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 75,071,893 74,933,155
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date 
of issue of shares) 74,999,515 74,933,155

c) Number of dilutive potential equity shares 3,016,562 1,829,176

d) Basic earnings per share (in rupees) {a/b} 4.56 3.52

e) Diluted earnings per share (in rupees) {a/(b+c)} 4.38 3.43

21.4 Deferred taxes

 The primary components relating to deferred tax assets are as follows:

2010 2009

Deferred tax asset
Tax effect of the timing differences on account of:
 Difference between book and tax depreciation 12.48 11.22
 Provision for doubtful debts 1.00 13.82
 Disallowances under Section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 53.89 58.64

Deferred tax asset 67.37 83.68

21.5 Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

 (A) Defined contribution plan (Provident fund):

     Amount of Rs. 3.61 million (Previous year: Rs. 4.02 million) is recognised as expenses and included in “ Employee Costs” – 
Schedule 18 in the profit and loss account.

  (B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

     The following tables summarise the components of the net employee benefit expenses recognised in the profit and loss account, 
the fund status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.3 Earnings per share

Schedules to the financial statements
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  Profit and loss account

  Net employee benefit expenses (recognised in employee cost)

2010 2009
Current service cost 3.07 4.50

Interest on defined benefit obligation 0.85 0.85
Expected return on plan assets – –
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised in the year – –
Past service cost – –
Actuarial (gain)/losses (1.45) (2.31)
Total included in 'employee benefit expense' 2.47 3.04
  

  Balance sheet

  Details of provision for gratuity

 2010 2009
Liability at the end of the year 11.36 9.12
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year – –
Difference 11.36 9.12
Unrecognised past service cost – –
Unrecognised transition liability – –
Amount in Balance sheet 11.36 9.12

   

  Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

 2010 2009
Liability at the beginning of the year 9.12 6.08
Interest cost 0.85 0.85
Current service cost 3.07 4.50
Past service cost (non vested benefit) – –
Past service cost (vested benefit) – –
Benefits paid (0.23) –
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1.45) (2.31)
Liability at the end of the year 11.36 9.12

  Principal actuarial assumptions as at the balance sheet date:

 2010 2009
 
Discount rate 7.50% 7.00%
Salary escalation 8.00% 8.00%
Employee attrition rate 2.00%-15.00% 2.00%-15.00%

21.6 Operating leases

    The Company has taken various premises on operating lease. Gross rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2010 aggregated 
to Rs. 18.01 million (Previous year: Rs. 36.93 million) which has been included under the head Operating expenses – Rent – 
Schedule 19, in the profit and loss account. 

   Details of future minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2010 2009
Minimum lease payments for non-cancellable leases 
– not later than one year 2.35 1.08
– later than one year and not later than five years – 0.15
Total 2.35 1.23

   Future minimum lease payments for the non-cancellable operating leases are before sharing of expenses with group companies.

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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   The aggregate managerial remuneration under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the directors (including managing director) is:

Particulars 2010 2009
Whole-time directors  
Salaries and bonus 35.74  21.02 
Rent 0.80 1.72
Total remuneration 36.54  22.74
Non-whole-time directors
Commission 3.50  2.50 
Total remuneration 3.50 2.50 

 Provision for gratuity is based on actuarial valuation done on an overall basis which is excluded from above.

 Computation of Net Profit in accordance with section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 and calculation of commission payable to non-
whole-time directors for financial year 2009-10:

Particulars 2010
Profit before tax as per profit and loss account 423.45
Add:
Whole-time directors' remuneration 36.54
Commission to non-whole-time directors 3.50
Provision for diminution in the value of long term investments 20.69
Provision for doubtful debts –
Gratuity provision 2.47
Loss on sale of fixed assets –
Sub-total 63.20
Less:
Profit on sale of fixed assets credited to profit and loss account 13.97
Write back of provision for diminution in long term investments (net) –
Provision for doubtful advances written back 37.64
Sub-total 51.61
Profit as per section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 435.04
Commission payable to non-whole-time directors:
Maximum allowed as per Companies Act,1956 at 1% 4.35
Commission approved by the Board 3.50

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.8 Managerial remuneration 
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 The Company has undertaken the following transactions in foreign currency:

 2010 2009
 
Expenditure incurred in foreign currency (on accrual basis)  
Travel  2.08  2.60 
Professional fees  5.26  26.37 
Employee costs  –  0.51 
Purchase of fixed assets  –  1.43 
Printing and distribution  –  1.18 
Software licence fees  0.94  – 
Interest on fully convertible debentures  229.53  229.84 
Subscription charges  1.45  3.34 
   
Total  239.26  265.27 
  
Income earned in foreign currency (on accrual basis)  
Fee income  91.60  63.12 
Reimbursement  12.02  0.22 
   
Total  103.62  63.34 
   

 Amount remitted in foreign currency during the year ended 31 March 2010 on account of equity dividend:

(Dividend) (Interim 
dividend)

Number of equity shareholders 12 11
Number of equity shares 11,877,024 6,901,082

Dividend relates to year ended 31 March 2009 31 March 2010
Amount remitted (Indian rupees in millions) 35.63 13.81

 Amount remitted in foreign currency during the year ended 31 March 2009 on account of equity dividend:

(Dividend)
Number of equity shareholders 16
Number of equity shares 16,593,669

Dividend relates to year ended 31 March 2008
Amount remitted (Indian rupees in millions) 33.19

21.10 Auditors’ remuneration

2010 2009

As auditors 2.40 2.25
Other matters 0.23 0.50
Out-of-pocket expenses 0.08 0.09

Total 2.71 2.84

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.9 Foreign currency transactions

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 The Company has currently six Employee Stock Option Plans (‘Plans’) in force. The Plans provide that the Company’s employees and 
those of its subsidiaries are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the Company that vests in a graded manner. The options may 
be exercised within a specified period.

 The Company follows the intrinsic value method to account for its stock based compensation plans. Compensation cost is measured 
as the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the underlying share over the exercise price.

 During the year, the Company has issued ESOP 2009 Plan wherein stock options were granted to employees where the exercise price 
was linked to either closing market price of the shares on the date of the grant or book value of the shares as per the last audited 
balance sheet as on the date of the grant, whichever is higher. The schedule of stock options vesting period is as follows:-

Sr. No. Vesting Date Maximum % of Options that shall Vest
1 36 months from the date of grant 30 (Thirty)% of grant
2 48 months from the date of grant 30 (Thirty)% of grant
3 60 months from the date of grant 40 (Forty)% of grant

Total 100 (One Hundred)% of grant 

 For determination of compensation cost, the Company has assumed the exercise price to be the specified amount.

 During the previous year, the Company has issued ESOP 2008 Plan wherein stock options were granted to employees with a variable 
exercise price (i.e. the exercise price was linked to either a discount on market price at the time of exercise or a specified amount, 
whichever is higher). The stock options vested after one year from the date of grant. For determination of compensation cost, the 
Company has assumed the exercise price to be the specified amount.

 With respect to stock options granted upto 31 March 2008, the fair market value of the underlying shares has been determined based 
on an independent valuer’s report as these stock options were granted by the Company to its employees when it was not listed on 
the stock exchanges. The fair value under stock options granted during the year is arrived as stipulated in the Guidance Note on 
Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The compensation cost 
recorded in the profit and loss account for the year is Rs. 7.63 million (Previous year: Rs.6.80 million).

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.11 Employee stock option plans

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
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 (*) Pricing formula: 

 ESOP 2008 (I)

Period during which vested 
options are exercised

From the date of vesting to 
31 December 2010

From 1 January 2011 to 
31 December 2011

Exercise price payable for such vested 
options 

10% discount to market price or Rs. 1,200; 
whichever is higher; otherwise Rs. 1,200.

10% discount to the reference price
i.e., average of closing price of grant date 
and 14 days preceding the grant date

 ESOP 2008 (III)

Period during which vested 
options are exercised

From the date of vesting to 
31 December 2012

From 1 January 2013 to 
31 December 2013

Exercise price payable for such vested 
options 

In case shares are listed, 10% discount 
to market price or Rs. 1,200; whichever is 
higher; otherwise Rs. 1,200.

10% discount to the reference price 
i.e., average of closing price of grant date 
and 14 days preceding the grant date

 ESOP 2007 (I)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date of vesting 
to 30 September 2008

From 1 October 2008 to 
30 September 2009

From 1 October 2009 to 
30 September 2010

From 1 October 2010 to 
30 September 2011

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options 

In case shares are listed, 
10 % discount to market 
price or Rs. 1,167; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 1,167.

In case shares are 
listed, 25 % discount to 
market price or Rs. 833; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 833.

Rs. 583 Rs. 217

 ESOP 2007 (II)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date 
of vesting to 
30 June 2008

From 1 July 2008 to 
30 June 2009

From 1 July 2009 to 
30 June 2010

From 1 July 2010 to 
30 June 2011

From 1 July 2011 to 
30 June 2012

Exercise price 
payable for such 
vested options

In case shares 
are listed, 10% 
discount to market 
price or Rs. 1,167; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 1,167.

In case shares are 
listed, 25% discount 
to market price or 
Rs. 833; whichever 
is higher; otherwise 
Rs. 833.

In case shares are 
listed, 50% discount 
to market price or 
Rs. 667; whichever 
is higher; otherwise 
Rs. 667.

Rs. 500 Rs. 333

 ESOP 2007 (III)

Period during which 
vested options are 
exercised

From the date of vesting 
to 31 December 2007

From 1 January 2008 to 
31 December 2008

From 1 January 2009 to 
31 December 2009

From 1 January 2010 to 
31 December 2010

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options

Rs. 1,167 In case shares are 
listed, 25% discount to 
market price or Rs. 833; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 833

In case shares are 
listed, 50% discount to 
market price or Rs. 667; 
whichever is higher; 
otherwise Rs. 667

Rs. 517

 (**) Range of Exercise price

 ESOP 2009 

Exercise price payable 
for such vested options 

Closing market price of the shares on the date of the grant or book value of 
the shares as per the last audited balance sheet as on the date of the grant, 
whichever is higher.

Rs. 394.40 to Rs. 502.60

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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 Following summarises the information about stock options outstanding as at 31 March 2010:

Plan 
ESOP 
2002 

Scheme D 

ESOP 
2004 

Scheme F 

ESOP 
2006 

Scheme G 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme I 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme II 

ESOP 
2007 

Scheme III 

ESOP 
2008 

Scheme I

ESOP 
2008 

Scheme III 

ESOP 
2009 

- Range of exercise price Rs. 5.00 to 
Rs. 79.17 

Rs. 10.42 to 
Rs.166.67 

Rs. 79.17 to 
Rs.166.67 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Pricing 
formula 

Rs. 394.40 
to 

Rs. 502.60

- Number of shares arising out 
of options  3,000  677,717  1,761,300  348,950  649,600  1,592,200  354,800  354,800  2,023,800

- Weighted average life of 
outstanding options (in 
years)  1.50  3.83  4.77  1.50  2.25  0.75  1.75  3.75  6.19 

          

 Weighted average exercise 
prices of stock options          

- outstanding at the beginning 
of the year  42.08  83.07  90.87  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15 N.A.

- granted during the year  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  399.97 

- forfeited/cancelled during 
the year  N.A.  34.18  N.A.  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  395.28 

- exercised during the year  N.A. 37.14 79.17  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A. 

- outstanding at the end of the 
year  42.08  17.56  91.09  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  401.39 

- exercisable at the end of the 
year  42.08  81.02  79.17  217.00  333.00  517.00  463.03  348.15  N.A. 

 The weighted average market share price for stock options exercised during the year is Rs. 433.29 (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

 Fair value methodology

 The fair value of options used to compute pro-forma net income and earnings per share have been estimated on the dates of each 
grant, on or after the date the ‘Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments’, issued by the council of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, became applicable, i.e. 1 April 2005, using the black-scholes option pricing model. In 
absence of the shares of the Company being listed at the time of the grant the Company has estimated the volatility based on the 
historical market volatility. The various assumptions considered in the pricing model for the aforementioned ESOP’s granted are:

2010
Dividend yield 0.4% - 1.5%
Expected volatility 16.29% - 46.69%
Risk free interest rate 6.50% - 7.75%
Expected life of the option 3.19 – 9 years

 Impact of fair value method on net profit and earnings per share

 Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans outstanding been determined based on the fair value approach, the 
Company’s net profit and earnings per share would have reduced to the pro-forma amounts as indicated below:

2010
Net Profit (as reported) 342.04
Less: Impact of incremental cost under fair value approach 116.10
Net Profit: (pro-forma) 225.94

Basic earnings per share (as reported) (in rupees) 4.56
Basic earnings per share (pro-forma) (in rupees) 3.01
Diluted earnings per share (as reported) (in rupees) 4.38
Diluted earnings per share (pro-forma) (in rupees) 2.89

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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 Capital commitments (net of advances) – Rs.Nil (Previous year: Rs. 39 million)

21.13 Contingent liability 

 a. Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending – Rs.8.72 million (Previous year: Rs. 2.06 million). The demand paid under 
protest in respect of disputed taxation matters pertaining to open assessments of earlier years is Rs. 1.75 million (Previous year: 
Rs. 1.75 million). 

 b. The Company has issued corporate guarantees to the extent of Rs. 3,800 million (Previous year: Rs. 6,188.30 million), in favour of banks 
to secure the credit facilities sanctioned by these banks to Edelweiss Securities Limited, EC Commodity Limited, Edelweiss Broking 
Limited and Edelweiss Commodities Limited (subsidiary companies) and Rs. 2,500 million in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services 
Limited for non-convertible debentures issued by ECL Finance Limited against due discharge of debt (subsidiary company).

 c. Fixed deposits of Rs. 300 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) is marked as lien in favour of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited, for non-
convertible debentures issued by the Company.

21.14 Secured loans (non-convertible debentures)

Series of issue Amount Outstanding Date of redemption
C1C803 26.00 30-Jun-11

C1C804 33.00 30-Jun-11

C1C806 30.00 20-Jun-11

C1C807 20.00 20-Jun-11

D1D804 5.00 29-Jul-11

D0D803* 19.00 30-Jun-10

D1E807 23.00 5-Aug-11

E1F802 44.00 1-Sep-11

F1G801 33.00 3-Oct-11

F1G803 18.00 10-Oct-11

F1G808 50.00 11-Oct-11

F1G807 23.00 14-Oct-11

G1G809 12.00 17-Oct-11

G1G810 16.00 18-Oct-11

F1G806* 35.00 4-Oct-11

G1H802 37.00 7-Nov-11

G1H801 37.00 8-Nov-11

H1H802 5.00 25-Nov-11

I1I801* 5.00 29-Dec-11

K1K801 1.50 28-Feb-12

A1A803 3.00 29-Mar-12
A2A905 2.00 27-Apr-12

A0A906 1.00 27-Apr-10

A0A907 1.50 29-Apr-10

A2A904 7.80 30-Apr-12

A0B903 2.50 28-Apr-10

A2B901 0.80 26-Apr-12

B0B904 3.50 26-May-10

B2B905 3.00 28-May-12

B0C903 4.00 3-Jun-10

B0C902 0.50 10-Jun-10

B2C901 0.50 8-Jun-12
D0D904 10.00 8-Jul-10

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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Series of issue Amount Outstanding Date of redemption
D0D905 10.00 13-Jul-10
D2D901 6.60 26-Jul-12
D0D902 3.00 30-Jul-10
E0E902 2.20 5-Aug-10
D0D906 0.50 30-Jul-10
E0F902 14.50 13-Sep-10
E0F903 16.90 20-Sep-10
F0F904 50.00 30-Jun-10
F0F905 50.00 30-Jun-10
F2F901* 21.00 25-Oct-12
F0F906 1.50 29-Sep-10
F2G901* 5.00 6-Nov-12
F2G905* 50.00 8-Nov-12
F2G907* 55.00 18-Nov-12
F0G902 0.40 17-Oct-10
G0G904 1.50 21-Oct-10
G0G903 2.80 24-Oct-10
G2G906* 1.00 30-Nov-12
G2H902* 72.70 3-Dec-12
G2H903* 20.00 3-Dec-12
G2H905* 5.00 14-Dec-12
H2H908* 5.00 26-Dec-12
H2H904 3.50 28-Nov-12
I2I902* 24.00 29-Oct-12
I0I901 2.50 30-Dec-10
I2J901* 3.00 31-Dec-12

I2J902* 25.00 1-Nov-12

I2J903* 4.50 1-Nov-12

I2J904* 55.00 6-Nov-12

I2J905* 20.00 6-Nov-12

J0J907* 1.30 28-Jan-11

I2J906* 21.60 30-Jan-13

J0K903* 17.00 16-Feb-11

J2K902* 80.00 29-Dec-12

J2K908* 116.00 29-Dec-12

J2K904* 7.20 18-Feb-13

K2K907* 36.00 28-Dec-12

J2K910* 153.00 29-Dec-12

K2K912* 59.00 28-Dec-12

J2K911* 0.70 28-Feb-13

K2K915* 100.00 26-Feb-13

K0K916* 67.40 2-Mar-11

K2K914* 46.90 28-Dec-12

K2K917* 20.00 31-Dec-12

A2A901 1.50 3-Apr-12

A2A902 2.00 3-Apr-12

B2B902 2.00 18-May-12

D2D903 1.00 27-Jul-12

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)
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Series of issue Amount Outstanding Date of redemption
G0H804 10.00 8-Nov-10

9.25% Debentures 666.67 14-May-10

9.25% Debentures 666.67 14-Nov-10

9.25% Debentures 666.66 14-May-11

9% Debentures 400.00 19-Jan-11

9% Debentures 250.00 20-Jan-11

9% Debentures 250.00 18-Feb-11

7% Debentures 30.00 10-Feb-11

 4,717.30  

 * Non-principal protected

 The non-convertible debentures other than non-principal protected issued during the year are redeemable at par.

21.15 Details of dues to macro enterprises and small enterprises

 The Company has requested its creditors to confirm the applicability to them under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006. Based on the responses received by the Company, the details of dues to macro enterprises and small enterprises:

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 2010 2009

1. the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining 
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of accounting period Nil Nil

2. the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro Small and 
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, along with the amounts of the payment made to 
the supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting period Nil Nil

3. the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the 
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. Nil Nil

4. the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting period Nil Nil
5. the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the 
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small 
and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. Nil Nil

21.16 Disclosure of loans and advances pursuant to clause 32 of listing agreement

 a) Rs. 11.35 million (Previous year: Rs. 2.65 million) due from Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited (maximum amount due at 
any time during the year Rs. 11.35 million; Previous year: Rs. 16.17 million)

 b) Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) due from Edelweiss Asset Management Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the year 
Rs. 3.20 million; Previous year: Rs. Nil)

 c) Rs. 317.15 million (Previous year: Rs. 69.26 million) due from Edelweiss Broking Limited (maximum amount due at any time during 
the year Rs. 1,500.73 million; Previous year: Rs. 73.39 million)

 d) Rs. 28.61 million (Previous year: Rs. 250.21 million) due from EC Commodity Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the 
year Rs. 2,838.51 million; Previous year: Rs. 250.21 million)

 e) Rs. 4,510.16 million (Previous year: Rs. 186.07 million) due from Edelweiss Commodities Limited (maximum amount due at any 
time during the year Rs. 13,955.10 million; Previous year: Rs. 5,296.67 million)

 f) Rs. 546.42 million (Previous year: Rs. 147.03 million) due from ECap Equities Limited (maximum amount due at any time during 
the year Rs. 4,527.62 million; Previous year: Rs. 3,178.81 million)

 g) Rs. 63.08 million (Previous year: Rs. 50.10 million) due from Edel Commodities Limited (maximum amount due at any time during 
the year Rs. 975.99 million; Previous year: Rs. 50.10 million)

 h) Rs. 1,341.44 million (Previous year: Rs. 176.05 million) due from Edelcap Securities Limited (maximum amount due at any time 
during the year Rs. 4,573.42 million; Previous year: Rs. 3,043.01 million)

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.14 Secured loans (non-convertible debentures) (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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 i) Rs. 1,496.41 million (Previous year: Rs. 1,520.40 million) due from Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (maximum amount 
due at any time during the year Rs. 3,912.42 million; Previous year: Rs. 5,490.08 million)

 j) Rs. 2.85 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) due from Edel Land Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the year Rs. 5.30 
million; Previous year: Rs. Nil)

 k) Rs. 4,709.41 million (Previous year: Rs. 2,545.12 million) due from Edelweiss Securities Limited (maximum amount due at any time 
during the year Rs. 12,129.62 million; Previous year: Rs. 6,869.21 million)

 l) Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. Nil) due from Edelweiss Capital Services Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the year Rs. 
0.70 million; Previous year: Rs. Nil)

 m) Rs. 0.50 million (Previous year: Rs. 0.01 million) due from Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited (maximum amount due at any time 
during the year Rs. 0.50 million; Previous year: Rs. 0.39 million)

 n) Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 164.80 million) due from Edelweiss Financial Products & Solutions Limited (maximum amount due at 
any time during the year Rs. 751.56 million; Previous year: Rs. 355.75 million)

 o) Rs. 1,444.05 million (Previous year: Rs. 424.82 million) due from Edelweiss Employees Welfare Trust (maximum amount due at any 
time during the year Rs.1,451.80 million; Previous year: Rs. 424.82 million)

 p) Rs. 130.20 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) due from Edelweiss Employees Incentive and Welfare Trust (maximum amount due at 
any time during the year Rs. 130.20 million; Previous year: Rs. Nil)

 q) Rs. 534.55 million (Previous year: Rs. Nil) due from EC International Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the year Rs. 
2,838.51 million; Previous year: Rs. Nil)

 r) Rs. 510.18 million (Previous year: Rs. 114.89 million) due from ECL Finance Limited (maximum amount due at any time during the 
year Rs. 7,317.55 million; Previous year: Rs. 2,787.98 million)

 s) Rs. 32.11 million (Previous year: Rs. 38.06 million) due from Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited (maximum amount due at any 
time during the year Rs. 45.74 million; Previous year: Rs. 38.99 million)

 t) Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 0.54 million) due from Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (maximum amount due at any 
time during the year Rs. 21.11 million; Previous year: Rs. 0.54 million)

 u) Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 0.79 million) due from Edelweiss Real Estate Advisors Private Limited (maximum amount due at any time 
during the year Rs. 3.55 million; Previous year: Rs. 11.06 million)

• All the above loans are repayable on demand except for loan of Rs. 482.50 million and Rs. 1,304.80 million to Edelweiss Finance & 
Investments Limited and Edelcap Securities Limited respectively where repayment is as per contracted terms.

• Of the above loans, items a) to p) are at the interest rate below the rate specified in the section 372A

21.17 Cost sharing

 Edelweiss Capital Limited, being the holding company incurs expenditure like common senior management compensation cost, 
advertisement cost, rent expenditure, etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and certain subsidiary companies. This cost so 
expended is recovered as reimbursement from the subsidiaries on the basis of number of employees, area occupied, time spent by 
employees for other companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, operational cost expended by the Company’s Subsidiary 
for the benefit of the Company is reimbursed by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified appropriately, the expenditure heads in 
Schedule 18 and schedule 19 are net of these reimbursements.

21.18 Schedule VI disclosures

 Disclosures under Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 has been made to the extent applicable to the Company.

21.19 Prior period comparatives

 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rashesh Shah Venkat Ramaswamy B Renganathan
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director V. P. & Company Secretary

 Mumbai | 21 May 2010

21 NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

21.16 Disclosure of loans and advances pursuant to clause 32 of listing agreement. (Continued)

Schedules to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 
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I Registration Details

Registration No. U99999MH1995PLC094641 State code 11

Balance sheet date 31 03 2010

II Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rupees Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Issue

– –

Bonus Issue Private Placement

– 6,534

III Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rupees Thousands)

Total Liabilities Total Assets

27,635,380 27,635,380

Source of Funds

Paid–up Capital Reserves & Surplus

375,359 12,707,014

Stock Options Outstanding Share Application Money

18,912 36

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans

4,718,507 9,815,552

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets Investments

31,032 11,536,055

Net Current Assets Miscellaneous Expenditure

16,000,925 –

Deferred Tax Asset

67,369

Balance sheet abstract and Company’s general business profile
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IV Performance of the Company (Amount in Rupees Thousands)

Turnover Total Expenditure

2,455,254 2,031,809

Profit/(Loss) before tax Profit/(Loss) after tax

423,446 342,039

Earnings per Share (in Rupees) Dividend rate

4.56 200%

V Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of the Company

 (as per monetary terms)

Item code No

(ITC Code)
Not applicable

Product Description Investment Banking and Financial Services

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rashesh Shah Venkat Ramaswamy B Renganathan
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Director V. P. & Company Secretary

 Mumbai | 21 May 2010

Balance sheet abstract and Company’s general business profile (Continued)
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NOTICE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF EDELWEISS CAPITAL LIMITED 
will be held on Friday, July 30, 2010 at 3.00 p.m. at Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, New Marine Lines, Mumbai - 400 020, to transact the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account of the Company 
for the financial year ended on that date together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare dividend on equity shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah, who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

5. To re-appoint BSR & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until 
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Berjis Desai, who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from November 18, 2009 and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, in terms of Section 260 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member under Section 257 
of the Act, proposing his candidature for the office of Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, 
liable to retirement by rotation.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309, Schedule XIII and other applicable provision, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and any amendment, re-enactment, thereof, the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars thereto, Mr. Rashesh Shah be re-
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from April 1, 2011 on the terms and 
conditions mentioned below:

 a) Salary Limit: Not to exceed Rs. 1,50,00,000/- per annum.

 b) Performance Bonus: In addition to salary and perquisites, performance based bonus payments up to 200% of salary limit may also be 
made and at such intervals as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 c) Perquisites: The expenditure incurred by the Company on perquisites shall be restricted to an amount equivalent to the annual salary. 
The following perquisites shall be paid to Mr. Rashesh Shah:

  i) Housing: Rent free residential accommodation will be provided by the Company in a place where Mr. Rashesh Shah is posted. In 
case the accommodation is owned by the Company, an amount equivalent to 10% of his salary shall be taken as the perquisite value. 
In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, he shall be entitled to House Rent Allowance as per the Company Rules.  
The Company shall defray the expenses incurred on gas, electricity, water and furnishing for the residential accommodation. 

  ii) Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for Mr. Rashesh Shah and his family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary in a year 
or 3 month’s salary over a period of 3 years.

  iii) Leave Travel Concession: Leave Travel concession for Mr. Rashesh Shah and his family once a year incurred in accordance with 
the Company Rules.

  iv) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of 2 clubs.

  v) Personal Accident Insurance: Premium not to exceed Rs. 8,000/- per annum.

  vi) A chauffeur driven car and telephone at residence for use on Company’s business.

  vii) Leave with full salary and perquisites as per the Company rules.

  viii) Payment of Gratuity as per the Company rules.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Company be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors/Committee thereof to vary the 
terms & conditions of his appointment from time to time as may be required.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of his tenure as the Managing Director, the Company has no 
profits or its profits are inadequate, a minimum remuneration be paid subject to the limits specified under the Companies Act, 1956.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration payable to 
Mr. Rashesh Shah in such manner as it deems fit within the above limits and to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be necessary 
to give effect to this resolution.”



8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 198, 269, 309, Schedule XIII and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 1956 the Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Circulars thereto, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy be re-appointed as a 
Whole-time Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from April 1, 2011 on the terms and conditions as 
mentioned below:

 a) Salary Limit: Not to exceed Rs. 1,50,00,000/- per annum.

 b) Performance Bonus: In addition to salary and perquisites, performance based bonus payments up to 200% of salary limit may also be 
made and at such intervals as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 c) Perquisites: The expenditure incurred by the Company on perquisites shall be restricted to an amount equivalent to the annual salary. 
The following perquisites shall be paid to Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy:

  i) Housing: Rent free residential accommodation will be provided by the Company in a place where Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy is 
posted. In case the accommodation is owned by the Company, an amount equivalent to 10% of his salary shall be taken as the 
perquisite value. In case no accommodation is provided by the Company, he shall be entitled to House Rent Allowance as per 
the Company Rules. The Company shall defray the expenses incurred on gas, electricity, water and furnishing for the residential 
accommodation. 

  ii) Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy and his family subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary 
in a year or 3 month’s salary over a period of 3 years.

  iii) Leave Travel Concession: Leave Travel Concession for Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy and his family once a year incurred in accordance 
with the Company Rules.

  iv) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of 2 clubs.

  v) Personal Accident Insurance: Premium not to exceed Rs. 8,000/- per annum.

  vi) A chauffeur driven car and telephone at residence for use on Company’s business.

  vii) Leave with full salary and perquisites as per the Company rules.

  viii) Payment of Gratuity as per the Company rules.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the Company be and is hereby given to the Board of Directors/Committee thereof to vary the 
terms & conditions of his appointment from time to time as may be required.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of his tenure as a Whole-time Director, the Company has no 
profits or its profits are inadequate, a minimum remuneration be paid subject to the limits specified under the Companies Act, 1956.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration payable to 
Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy in such manner as it deems fit within the above limits and to do all such acts, deeds and things that may be 
necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution, as a Special resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and all other applicable provisions and subject to such other approvals as may be required, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to amend the Edelweiss Employees Stock Incentive Plan - 2007 (Plan 2007) and 
the Schemes framed thereunder as approved by the members of the Company at their meeting held on July 20, 2007, by extending the 
exercise period of the Vested Options by a further period of three years over and above the exercise period provided under Scheme I, 
Scheme II and Scheme III framed under the Plan 2007. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to and in accordance with the provisions of law, as may be applicable from time to time, the Board 
be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, 
deem necessary and with power on behalf of the Company to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without 
requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members of the Company.” 

10. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 16, 94 and other applicable provision, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, 
approval of the members be and is hereby accorded for increase in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 52,00,00,000 
(Rupees Fifty Two crores) to Rs. 1,25,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Twenty Five crores) by creation of additional equity share Capital of 
Rs. 73,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy Three crores only). 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 94 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
1956 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with the Articles of 
Association of the Company, and subject to such other approvals, consents, sanctions, if any, required from any authority and subject to 



such conditions as may be prescribed while granting such approvals, consents and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of 
Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof), consent of 
the members be and is hereby accorded for sub-dividing each of the equity shares of the face value of Rs. 5/- each, including the paid-up 
shares, into equity shares of the face value of Re. 1/- each. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to alter Clause V of the Memorandum of Association 
of the Company to give effect to the increase in the Authorised Share Capital and the Sub-division of the equity shares.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares arising pursuant to the increase shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company and shall in all respects rank pari passu with the then existing equity shares of the Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to and in accordance with the provisions of law, as may be applicable from time to time, the Board 
be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, 
deem necessary and with power on behalf of the Company to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard without 
requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the members of the Company.”

11. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:-

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 
2000 and all other applicable provisions, if any, (including any modification and re-enactment thereof), and subject to such consents and 
approvals as may be required in this regard, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Board’ which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof) for capitalisation of the Reserves and 
utilising the Securities Premium of the Company, as may be considered necessary by the Board, for the purpose of issue of Bonus Shares 
of the face value of Re. 1/- each as fully paid equity shares to the holders of the equity shares of the Company whose names appear in the 
Register of Members on such Record date as may be fixed in this regard, in the proportion of 1 (one) new equity share for every 1 (one) 
equity share.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the new equity shares of Re. 1/- each to be allotted as Bonus Shares shall be subject to the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the Company and shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares and shall be entitled to 
participate in full in any dividend to be declared for the financial year in which the Bonus Shares are allotted.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things and give such directions as may be necessary or desirable and to settle all questions or difficulties whatsoever 
that may arise with regard to the issue, allotment and distribution of the new equity shares.”

 NOTES:

 1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956, in respect of the business under item 6 to 11 set 
out above is annexed hereto. The details in respect of item Nos. 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8 above, as required under Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement are annexed.

 2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE 
MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.  

 3. Members/Proxies should bring the enclosed attendance slip duly filled in, for attending the Meeting, along with the Annual Report.

 4. Book Closure and Dividend

  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from July 1, 2010 to July 5, 2010 (both days 
inclusive). 

  Dividend if declared at the Annual General Meeting will be paid on or after July 30, 2010, to those persons or their mandates:

  (a) whose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on June 30, 2010, in the list of Beneficial Owners 
to be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited in respect of the shares 
held in electronic form; and

  (b) whose names appear as members in the Register of Members of the Company after giving effect to valid share transfers in physical 
form lodged with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent on or before June 30, 2010.

5. Nomination Facility

 Members holding shares in physical form may obtain the Nomination forms from the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain the Nomination forms from their respective Depository Participants.

6. Electronic Clearing Services (ECS) facility

 To avoid loss of dividend warrants in transit and undue delay in respect of receipt thereof, the Company provides ECS facility to the 
members. ECS facility is available at the locations identified by the Reserve Bank of India.



 Members holding shares in physical form and who are desirous of availing this facility are requested to contact the Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent of the Company.

 Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to contact their respective Depository Participants.

7. Bank Mandates

 In order to provide protection against fraudulent encashment of the dividend warrants, members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to intimate the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent under the signature of the Sole/First holder, the following information to be 
incorporated on the Dividend Warrants:

 I. Name of the Sole/First joint holder and the folio number

 II. Particulars of Bank Account viz.,

  a) Name of the Bank

  b) Name of the Branch

  c) Complete address of the Bank with Pin code 

  d) Bank Account Number allotted by the Bank

8. In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, ECS mandates, nomination, power of attorney, change in name/address, etc., the 
members are requested to approach:

– the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, in case of shares held in physical form and 

– the respective Depository Participants, in case of shares held in electronic form.

 In all correspondence with the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, members are requested to quote their account/folio numbers 
or DP ID and Client ID in respect of physical or electronic holdings, respectively.

9. Pursuant to Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years 
from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company shall be transferred to “Investors Education and Provident Fund” 
(Fund).

 No amount is due for transfer to the Fund. 

10. Certificates issued by the auditors of the Company pursuant to Clause 14 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 shall be placed at the meeting.

11. Members desirous of getting any information in respect of the contents of the Annual Report are requested to forward the queries to the 
Company at least ten days prior to the Meeting so that the required information can be made available at the Meeting.

Place : Mumbai For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Date : June 24, 2010 EDELWEISS CAPITAL LIMITED 

Registered Office:  B. Renganathan
14th Floor, Express Towers, V.P. & Company Secretary 
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 173 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 

Item No. 6:

Mr. Berjis Desai was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors of the Company, with effect from November 18, 2009. In 
accordance with the provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956, Mr. Berjis Desai will hold office as a Director upto the date of the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Desai is the Managing Partner of J. Sagar & Associates, one of India’s leading law firms. He holds a Masters degree in Law and also a 
Solicitor. He has been in practice for 30 years and has rich and varied experience in the legal field, especially on corporate law, merger & 
acquisitions, derivatives, securities & financial laws, international business laws and international commercial arbitration. 

Your Directors are of the view that the Company would be immensely benefited by the wealth of experience and expertise of Mr. Berjis Desai. 
Therefore, the Board recommends for approval the resolution contained in Item No. 6 of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors except Mr. Berjis Desai is concerned or interested in Item No. 6 of the Notice.

Item No. 7 & 8:

The tenure of appointment of Mr. Rashesh Shah as the Managing Director and Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy as Whole-time Director expires on 
March 31, 2011. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on May 21, 2010 had, subject to the approval of the members, re-appointed 
Mr. Rashesh Shah as the Managing Director and Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy as the Whole-time Director for a period of three years 
w.e.f. April 1, 2011.

Statement pursuant to Section II (C) of Part II of Schedule XIII of Companies Act, 1956

II. GENERAL INFORMATION

i. Nature of Industry:

 Edelweiss Capital Limited (ECL) along with its subsidiaries operates in financial services industry and is a diversified financial services 
company in India, providing inter alia investment banking, institutional equities, asset management, wealth management, private client 
brokerage, wholesale financing and client advisory services to corporate, institutional and high net worth individual clients. 

 It has grown from a boutique investment bank in 1996 to a diversified financial services company engaged in agency and capital business 
lines operating through the Company and its subsidiaries. The agency business lines include investment banking, institutional equities, 
private client brokerage, asset management wealth management and client advisory services; while the capital business lines include 
wholesale financing services and treasury operations.

 Being a company engaged in the financial services sector, a substantial portion of the total cost is incurred on Human Resources who 
manage the business which is distinct from the manufacturing industry, where inputs form the major component of cost.

ii. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production:

 N.A.

iii. In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial institutions appearing in the 
prospectus:

 N.A.

iv. Financial performance:

 The net profit of Edelweiss Capital Limited on a consolidated basis has grown from Rs. 1,864.44 million for the financial year ending March 
31, 2009 to Rs. 2,291.60 million for the financial year ending March 31, 2010. The standalone net profits of the Company has grown from 
Rs. 263.71 million for the financial year ending March 31, 2009 to Rs. 342.04 million for the financial year ending March 31, 2010. 

v. Export performance and net foreign exchange collaborations: 

 N.A.

vi Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: 

 During the financial year ending March 31, 2010, the Company has made foreign investments of Rs. 1,246.89 million (including loans given 
at gross value) in its wholly-owned subsidiaries abroad.  

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEE/S

i. Background:

 Mr. Rashesh Shah is the co-founder of the Company, Chairman, CEO and Managing Director of Edelweiss Capital Limited. He has over 
two decades of years of experience in financial services sector Mr. Rashesh Shah holds a bachelor’s degree in science from Bombay 
University and a PGDBA from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad. Previously, he was Head of Research, Prime Securities 
Private Limited and a Manager at ICICI Limited. He has handled a World Bank aided programme for export-oriented projects at ICICI 
Limited. He has advised various clients on a wide range of issues, financial and otherwise. He serves on the Board of various companies 
including on some committees. 



 Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy holds a bachelor’s degree in engineering from the Karnataka University and masters degree in business 
administration from the University of Pittsburgh. Previously, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy was a Fund Manager at Spartek Emerging Opportunities 
of India Fund. Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy was with ICICI Ltd. as an Assistant Manager and Tata Unisys Limited. Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy 
has worked with the Mumbai and Bangalore offices of ICICI with primary responsibilities of project appraisal, financial modeling and 
disbursement of loans and grants. Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy co-founded Edelweiss Capital Limited and is the Head of Investment Banking. 

ii. Past Remuneration:

 The Gross remuneration drawn by Mr. Rashesh Shah was Rs. 3,14,34,303/-, Rs. 1,22,18,078/- and Rs. 21,181,064 for financial year 2007-
08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 respectively. 

 The Gross remuneration drawn by Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy was Rs. 3,08,76,781, Rs. 1,05,24,001 and Rs. 15,359,400 for financial year 
2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 respectively. 

iii. Recognition and Awards: 

 Mr. Rashesh Shah has served on the Executive Committee of National Stock Exchange (NSE) and was the Chairman of the Capital Market 
Committee of FICCI. He is on the Board of various companies. He has been featured in a variety of publications, including The Far Eastern 
Economic Review, Business India, Business World and The Economic Times. Mr. Rashesh Shah was recently honoured with ‘The Alumnus 
of the Year’ award from the Indian Institute of foreign Trade (IIFT) and the “Entrepreneur of the Year” by Bombay Management Association 
for 2008-2009.

iv. Job profile and suitability:

 Mr. Rashesh Shah is the Managing Director of Edelweiss Capital Limited (ECL). As the Managing Director of ECL, Mr. Rashesh Shah 
is responsible for the overall functioning of the Company, its subsidiaries and associates. As the Managing Director of ECL he spends 
substantial time not only in overseeing the working and performance of the Company but also its various subsidiaries. He is involved in 
formulating strategy and providing vital inputs for the effective functioning of those companies.

 Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy is the Whole-time Director of Edelweiss Capital Limited (ECL). He oversees business development activities 
as well as execution of various deals. He leads a team of qualified professionals who are responsible for soliciting new clients for the 
investment banking business. He also extends support to some of the subsidiaries and associates. Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy is responsible 
for the entire operations of the investment banking department. 

v. Remuneration Proposed:

 The proposed remuneration for each of them shall include an annual salary of Rs. 1,50,00,000/-, performance based bonus payments upto 
200% of salary limit and perquisites up to an amount equivalent to the annual salary. The details have been provided in the resolution.

vi. Comparative remuneration profile:

 The remuneration proposed to be paid to the Managing Director and Whole-time Director is not directly comparable with other entities in 
the financial sector due to the diverse nature of business, but is broadly in line with other corporates engaged in similar operations. 

vii. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with managerial personnel, if any.

 Mr. Rashesh Shah and Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy are not related to any other Directors of the Company. 

iii. OTHER INFORMATION 

i. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

 The Company did not incur any loss during the previous financial years. The Company being in the financial services sector, a substantial 
portion of the total cost is incurred on Human Resources. Considering the services rendered by the Managing Director and the Whole-time 
Director to the Company, its subsidiaries and associates, the profits of the Company may be inadequate to remunerate them.

ii. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:

 The Company is constantly looking to enhance the ambit of services provided and is gradually increasing its market presence. 

iii. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms.

 The Company expects increase in the profits in line with the increase in its activity and market penetration. 

None of the Directors except Mr. Rashesh Shah and Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy is concerned or interested in Item No. 7 and 8 respectively of the 
Notice.

Item No. 9:

With a view to provide the employees of the Company a share in the growth of the Company, to attract, retain and motivate the best available 
talent in the Company, your Company had evolved Edelweiss Employees Stock Option Plan 2007 (Plan) and granted Options under three 
Schemes framed under the Plan. As on March 31, 2010, 348,950 vested options are outstanding under Scheme I of the Plan; 649,600 vested 
options are outstanding under Scheme II of the Plan and 1,592,200 vested options are outstanding under Scheme III of the Plan. The exercise 



period under all the three schemes applicable for exercise at the lowest exercise price is one year. All the unexercised options shall lapse 
after the aforesaid period of one year. Due to the market conditions, exercise of some of the Options have become unattractive, therefore, it is 
proposed to extend the Exercise period of these options by a further period of three years. There shall be no change / revision in the exercise 
price of the vested options.

Such variation is in compliance with the Securities & Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Stock Purchase Scheme) 
Guidelines, 1999 and is subject to the approval of the members of the Company. The other terms of the Plan shall remain unchanged. 

None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the resolution. 

Your Directors recommend the Special Resolution for the approval of the members.

Item No. 10:

At present, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 52 crores divided into 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each and 40,00,000 
Preference Shares of the face value of Rs. 5/- each and the paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 37.55 crores divided into 7,50,96,718 
equity shares of Rs. 5/- each.

In view of the proposed issue of the Bonus Shares and to meet the future requirements, the Authorised equity share capital of the Company is 
being increased from Rs. 50,00,00,000 to Rs. 1,23,00,00,000 by creation of equity share capital of Rs. 73,00,00,000.

In order to improve the liquidity of the Company’s equity shares on the Stock Exchanges and, to make the equity shares of the Company 
affordable to small investors, it is proposed to sub-divide each equity share of the face value of Rs. 5/- each into equity shares of Re. 1/- each.

Accordingly, equity share capital of Rs. 1,23,00,00,000 comprised in the Authorised Share Capital is proposed to be sub-divided into 
1,23,00,00,000 equity shares of Re. 1/- each. The issued, subscribed and the paid-up equity share capital of the Company, existing on the 
Record Date for the purposes of sub-division will also stand sub-divided into equity share of Re. 1/- each.

In respect of the equity shares held in physical form as on the Record Date, new share certificates shall be issued by the Company in lieu of 
the existing share certificates without calling back the existing equity share certificates and on the issue of new share certificates the existing 
share certificates shall stand cancelled.

Consequent to the increase in the Authorised Share Capital and the sub-division of the equity shares, Clause V of the Memorandum of 
Association of the Company would stand altered accordingly.

A copy of the existing Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company alongwith the proposed draft amendments is available for 
inspection by any member at the Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 a.m. and 12.00 noon on all working days (except Saturdays, 
Sundays and Public Holidays).

Your Directors, recommend passing the resolution set out at Item No. 10 of the Notice.

Mr. Rashesh Shah, Mr. Venkat Ramaswamy, Mr. Narendra Jhaveri, Mr. P. N. Venkatchalam and Mr. Navtej S. Nandra, the Directors are also 
members of the Company.

Item No. 11:

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on June 24, 2010 after taking into account the capital employed, securities 
premium, free reserves available for distribution, other relevant factors and, in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, and subject to necessary approvals, recommended an issue of Bonus 
Shares in the proportion of 1:1 i.e. one Bonus Share of the face value of Re. 1/- each for every one equity share of the face value of Re. 1/- each 
(after sub-division of the equity shares in the manner set out in the Item No. 10 of the Notice) held by the members on the Record Date to be 
fixed in this behalf, by capitalising the Reserves and utilising the Securities Premium of the Company. As at March 31, 2010, the Company had 
free reserves and surplus of Rs. 1,266.42 crores including Securities Premium.

Accordingly, the approval of the members is sought for issue of bonus shares, vide resolution at Item No. 11 of the Notice. 

The Board recommends the Resolutions set forth in Item No. 11 for the approval of the members.

The Directors of the Company may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the issue of bonus shares to the extent of their shareholdings 
in the Company. 

Place : Mumbai For and on behalf of the Board of the Directors
Date : June 24, 2010 EDELWEISS CAPITAL LIMITED 

Registered Office:  B. Renganathan
14th Floor, Express Towers, V.P. & Company Secretary 
Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021



Details of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement) 
as at June 24, 2010

Name of Director Rashesh Shah Venkat Ramaswamy Kunnasagaran Chinniah Berjis Desai

Date of Birth September 30, 1963 August 12, 1966 May 10, 1957 August 2, 1956

Date of Appointment November 21, 1995 February 20, 1996 June 5, 2007 November 18, 2009

Experience in specific 
functional area

Has more than 2 decades 
of experience in public and 
private markets in India 

Has more than 2 decades 
experience in venture 
capital and private equity 
advisory and fund raising.

Has more than 2 decades 
experience in private equity 
business.

Has more than 3 decades varied 
experience in the legal field.

Qualification B. Sc from the University of 
Bombay in November. 

PGDBM from the Indian 
Institute of Management, 
Ahmedabad. 

B. E. (Electronic & 
Communication) from 
Karnataka University. 

MBA from the University of 
Pittsburgh. 

B. E. (Electrical) National 
University of Singapore in 
1982

MBA degree from the 
University of California 
(Berkeley) in 1989

Chartered Financial Analyst 
certified by the Chartered 
Financial Analyst Institute

Masters in Law

Directorship in other 
Companies

• Icleo Com Limited

• Edelweiss Asset 
Reconstruction 
Company Limited

• Edelweiss Tokio Life 
Insurance Company 
Limited

• Edelweiss 
Trusteeship 
Company Limited

• Rediff.com India 
Limited

• Ivy Financial 
Services Private 
Limited

• Edelweiss Insurance 
Brokers Limited

• Edelweiss Alternative 
Asset Advisors 
Limited

• Edelweiss Property 
Advisors Limited

• Edelweiss Tokio Life 
Insurance Company 
Limited

• Icleo Com Limited

• Edelweiss Advisors 
Limited

• Exactus Corporation 
Private Limited

• Ivy Financial Services 
Private Limited

• Reid & Taylor (India) 
Limited

• Asset Reconstruction 
Company (India) 
Limited

• Sterlite Industries (India) 
Limited

• The Great Eastern Shipping 
Company Limited

• NOCIL Limited

• Praj Industries Limited 

• Emcure Pharmaceuticals 
Limited

• Greatship (India) Limited

• Centrum Capital Limited

• Deepak Nitrite Limited

• Centrum Fiscal Private Limited

• Capricorn Studfarm Private 
Limited

• Capricorn Agrifarms & 
Developers Private Limited

• Capricorn Plaza Private Limited

• Equine Bloodstock Private 
Limited

• Spring Healthcare Advisors 
Private Limited

• Sabre Capital India Investment 
Advisors Private Limited

• Eden Realtors Private Limited

Membership of 
committees of other 
companies (includes 
Audit and Shareholders’ 
Grievance Committee 

Rediff.com India Limited Nil Reid & Taylor (India) 
Limited

• Sterlite Industries (India) 
Limited

• Praj Industries Limited

• Emcure Pharmaceuticals 
Limited

• The Great Eastern Shipping 
Company Limited

• Centrum Capital Limted

• NOCIL Limited

No. of shares held in the 
Company

13,947,673 5,302,656 Nil Nil



Edelweiss Capital Limited 
Registered Office: 14th Floor, Express Towers, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021

Attendance Slip
(To be signed and handed over at the entrance of the meeting venue) 

Regd. Folio No.: DP ID*

No. of Shares held : Client ID*

Full Name of the Member (in Block Letters) 

Name of the Proxy 

(To be filled-in if the Proxy Form has been duly deposited with the Company) 

I hereby record my presence at the FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company at the Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, New 
Marine Lines, Mumbai - 400 020 on Friday, July 30, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. 

Member / Proxy’s Signature
(To be signed at the time of handing over this slip)

* Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form.

Note : Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting. 

Edelweiss Capital Limited 
Registered Office: 14th Floor, Express Towers, Nariman Point, Mumbai – 400021

PROXY FORM
Regd. Folio No.: DP ID*

No. of Shares held : Client ID*

I/We 

of  in the district of 

being a member / members of the above-named Company hereby appoint Shri 

of  in district of 

 or failing him Shri 

as my / our proxy to vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the FIFTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on 
Friday, July 30, 2010 at 3:00 p.m. at Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, New Marine Lines, Mumbai - 400 020 and at any adjournment thereof. 

Signed this  day of  2010 Signature 

* Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form. 

Note :  This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed and must be deposited at the Registered Office of 
the Company, not less than 48 hours before the meeting. 

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Please cut here 
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